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(all amounts in PLN ‘000, unless specified otheayi

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Perpetual usufruct of land

Intangible assets

Investment property

Investments in associates

Deferred tax assets

Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets measured at fair value througfit prdoss
Trade and other receivables

Current assets

CO, emission rights

Inventory

Trade and other receivables

Current income tax receivables

Financial assets held to maturity

Financial assets measured at fair value througfit prdoss
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets held for sale

Total assets

Note

10
11
12
31
15
22
16

18
19
16

15
22
21
14

As at
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Restated *

11 811 566 10 459 377
68 431 70 369
206 580 201 357
30 641 30752
3298 5951

181 403 175 081
61 761 66 735
1860 1504
3933 376

12 369 473 11 011 502
190 566 194 622
521 498 502 654

1 345 966 1419 387
11 455 16 026

45 5135

296 339 422 173
1573195 1 095 495
13 487 13541
3952 551 3669 033
16 322 024 14 680 535

* Restatements of comparative figures are presentBidte 4 of these consolidated financial stateien

The consolidated statement of financial positioousth be analyzed together with the notes, whictstitute an integral part of the

consolidated financial statements.
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(all amounts in PLN ‘000, unless specified otheayi

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Share capital

Share premium

Share-based payments reserve

Financial instruments revaluation reserve

Other capital

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Loans, borrowings and debt securities

Finance lease liabilities

Deferred income due to subsidies and connectia fee
Deferred tax liability

Liabilities due to employee benefits

Financial liabilities measured at fair value thrbygofit or loss
Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Current liabilities

Loans, borrowings and debt securities

Trade and other liabilities

Finance lease liabilities

Deferred income due to subsidies and connectian fee

Current income tax liabilities

Liabilities due to employee benefits

Liabilities due to an equivalent of the right tajate shares
free of charge

Financial liabilities measured at fair value thrbygofit or loss

Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Liabilities related to non-current assets heldsaie

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Note

23

32

30
33
14

As at
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Restated *
588 018 588 018
3 632 464 3 632 464
1 144 336 1 144 336
45 185 50 233
(20 664) (21 317)
6 079 288 5 497 592
11 468 627 10 891 326
19 321 22721
11 487 948 10 914 047
819 909 50 797
1784 4 248
630 411 659 627
220 376 237911
476 237 542 511
364 -
407 735 247 724
2 556 816 1742 818
22 648 24 043
1407 703 1290 391
2940 3494
71398 92 831
57 940 58 782
270 809 177 407
292 306
- 14
443 260 375 864
270 538
2 277 260 2 023 670
4 834 076 3 766 488
16 322 024 14 680 535

* Restatements of comparative figures are preseéntedte 4 of these consolidated financial statamen

The consolidated statement of financial positioousth be analyzed together with the notes, whictstitute an integral part of the

consolidated financial statements.

6
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(all amounts in PLN ‘000, unless specified otheayi

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and OtheComprehensive Income

12 months 12 months
ended ended
Note 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Restated *
Sales revenue 9 355 406 10 285 837
Excise duty (204 886) (194 487)
Net sales revenue 34 9 150 520 10 091 350
Other operating revenue 37 125 087 108 159
Depreciation 35 (761 759) (749 737)
Costs of employee benefits 35 (1 036 215) (1 009 467)
Consumption of materials and supplies and cosg®odls sold 35 (1 753573) (1 909 695)
Energy purchase for sale 35 (3303 371) (4 097 265)
Transmission services 35 (599 170) (714 451)
Other external services 35 (420 046) (434 336)
Taxes and charges 35 (244 240) (224 857)
Gain/(loss) on sale and liquidation of propertgmland equipment 109 (8 549)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 8 (11 363) (5 397)
Other operating expenses 37 (248 954) (220 866)
Operating profit 897 025 824 889
Financial expenses 39 (44 821) (84 133)
Financial revenue 38 88 144 148 646
Impairment loss on goodwill 10.1 - (5921)
Dividend income 41 4552 2724
Share in profits/losses of associates measured ttgnequity method 331 304
Profit before tax 945 231 886 509
Income tax 40 (229 867) (192 443)
Net profit for the reporting period 715 364 694 066
Other comprehensive income
Items that are or may be reclassified to profibss
- change in fair value of financial assets availdbiesale
reclassified to profit or loss - (12 243)
- change in fair value of financial assets availdbiesale (4 966) 15 626
- cash flow hedge (1 025) -
- income tax 943 (2713)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit osio
- net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefitgpla 27 331 (60 888)
- other - 7 400
- income tax (5 193) 11 568
Net other comprehensive income 17 090 (41 250)
Total comprehensive income 732 454 652 816
Including net profit:
attributable to shareholders of the Parent 715 368 699 673
attributable to non-controlling interest 4) (5 607)
Including comprehensive income:
attributable to shareholders of the Parent 732 439 658 540
attributable to non-controlling interest 15 (5724)
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Rare 715 368 699 673
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 441 442 578 441 442 578
Net earnings per share (in PLN per share) 1.62 1.58
Diluted earnings per share (in PLN per share) 1.62 1.58

* Restatements of comparative figures are preseéntedte 4 of these consolidated financial statamen

The consolidated statement of profit or loss améiotomprehensive income should be analyzed tageittethe notes, which constitute
an integral part of the consolidated financialestants. 7
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(all amounts in PLN ‘000, unless specified otheeyi

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Balance as at 01.01.2013

Net profit

Net other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

for the period
Dividends

Acquisition of shares in subsidiarit
from non-controlling interests
Balance as at 31.12.2013

Note

41

. Financial Capital
Share capital Revaluation Total Share Share-based instruments Other Retained attributable to -
of share share . payments . . ) . Total equity
(face value) . . premium revaluation capital earnings non-controlling
capital capital reserve reserve interests
441 443 146 575 588 018 3632 464 1144 336 50233 (21317) 5497592 22721 10 914 047
715 368 (4) 715 364
(5 048) 22138 17 090
(5 048) 737 506 (4) 732 454
(158 919) (158 919)
653 3109 (3 396) 366
441 443 146 575 588 018 3632 464 1144 336 45185 (20664) 6079 288 19 321 11 487 948

The consolidated statement of changes in equityldhze analyzed together with the notes, which titorts an integral part of the consolidated finahstatements.
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(all amounts in PLN ‘000, unless specified otheeyi

Balance as at 01.01.2012 *
Net profit *

Net other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the period
Dividends

Acquisition of shares in subsidiari:

from non-controlling interests

Other
Balance as at 31.12.2012

" Financial Capital
Note Share capital Rg;/gLuaar'gon ;?;?L Share Sh:";gifsed instruments Other Retained attributable to Total equit
(face value) . . premium pay revaluation capital earnings non-controlling quity
capital capital reserve .
reserve interests
441 443 146 575 588 018 3632 464 1144 336 49565 (21710) 5051303 29 088 10 473 064
699 673 (5 607) 694 066
668 (41 918) (41 250)
668 657 755 (5 607) 652 816
41 (211 892) ® (211 900)
393 393
426 (752) (326)
441 443 146 575 588 018 3632 464 1144 336 50233 (21317) 5497592 22721 10 914 047

* Restatements of comparative figures are presentadte 4 of these consolidated financial statasmen

The consolidated statement of changes in equityldize analyzed together with the notes, which titorts an integral part of the consolidated finahstatements.
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(all amounts in PLN ‘000, unless specified otheayi

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

12 months ended 12 months ended

31.12.2012
Note 31.12.2013 Restated *
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the reporting period 715 364 694 066
Adjustments:
Income tax in profit or loss 40 229 867 192 443
Depreciation 35 761 759 749 737
(Profit) / loss on sale and liquidation of prageplant
and equipment (109) 8 549
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 8 11 363 5397
Impairment loss on goodwill 10.1 - 5921
(Profit) / loss on sale of financial assets 9 637 (35 148)
Interest income (83 257) (136 092)
Dividend income (4 552) (2 724)
Interest expense 12 745 19 080
(Gain)/loss on measurement of financial assets 607 24 395
Other financial costs - 5 756
Share in the (profit) / loss of associates (331) (304)
Exchange (gains) / losses on loans and borr@ving 827 1787
Other adjustments (1 595) (949)
936 961 837 848
Paid income tax (254 421) (213 373)
Interest received 72713 112581
Interest paid (8 063) (65 930)
Changes in working capital
CO;emission rights 4 056 48 150
Inventory (11 921) (12 908)
Trade and other receivables 63471 (268 419)
Trade and other liabilities (31 029) 46 234
Liabilities due to employee benefits 53 691 22 850
Deferred income due to subsidies and connetties (74 534) (56 074)
Liabilities due to an equivalent of the rightatoquire shares
free of charge (14) (202)
Non-current assets held for sale and relatéditias (214) 7 705
Other provisions 227 395 89 549
230901 (123 115)
Net cash flows from operating activities 1693 455 1242 077
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment angngible assets (1 989 095) (1 789 159)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egeig 26 347 8 965
Acquisition of financial assets (140 000) (772 530)
Receipts from disposal of financial assets 277 063 1491 436
Acquisition of subsidiaries adjusted by acquireshca (1 108) (52 559)
Receipts from disposal of subsidiaries 3000 1610
Dividends received 4 552 2724
Other receipts from investing activities 2213 484
Net cash flows from investing activities (1817 028) (1109 029)
Cash flows from financing activities
Loans and borrowings received 795 041 3857
Loans and borrowings repaid (25 896) (40 828)
Dividend paid to the Parent’s shareholders (158 919) (211 892)
Payment of finance lease liabilities (5775) (5 686)
Other payments for financing activities (2571) (1119)
Net cash flows from financing activities 601 880 (255 668)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash 478 307 (122 620)
Opening balance of cash 21 1095 495 1218 361
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash (607) (246)
Closing balance of cash 21 1573 195 1095 495

* Restatements of comparative figures is preseimtedte 4 of these consolidated financial statement

The consolidated statement of cash flows shoulanadyzed together with the notes, which constiéuténtegral part of the consolidated
financial statements.

10
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(all amounts in PLN ‘000, unless specified otheayi

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. General information

1.1. General information about ENEA S.A. and the ENEA Goup

Name (business name):
Legal form:

Country:

Registered office:

Address:

NUMBER IN NATIONAL COURT
REGISTER (KRS):
Telephone:

Fax:

E-mail:

Website:

Statistical number (REGON):

Tax identification number (NIP):

ENEA Spoétka Akcyjna
joint-stock company
Poland

Pozna

Gorecka 1, 60-201 Pozina

0000012483

(+48 61) 884 55 44
(+48 61) 884 59 59
enea@enea.pl

www.enea.pl
630139960

777-00-20-640

The main activities of the ENEA Group (“Group”) are

— production of electricity and heat (ENEA Wytwarzaui8.A., Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z 0.0. — currently
ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A, Elektrocieptownia Biatystok AS - currently ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A,
Windfarm Polska Sp. z o0.0., Przedsiebiorstwo EngkjeCieplnej Sp. z 0.0. in Oborniki, Miejska
Energetyka Cieplna Pita Sp. z 0.0., Dobitt EneB&paz o.0.- currently ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A);

— trade in electricity (ENEA S.A., ENEA Trading Spoa.);

— distribution of electricity (ENEA Operator Sp. 20.

On 12 September 2013 ENEA S.A. was granted a csiweeor trade in gas fuel, valid from 1 Januaryt20

till 31 December 2030. The Company plans to comméehe retail sales of natural gas in 2014.

As at 31 December 2013 the shareholding structtieNEA S.A. was the following: the State Treasury
of the Republic of Poland — 51.50% of shares, Viddté AB — 18.67%, other shareholders — 29.83%.

The change in the shareholding structure of ENEX 8fter reporting date was presented in Note 55.

As at 31 December 2013 the Company’s statutoryeshapital registered in the National Court Register
equaled PLN 441 443 thousand (PLN 588 018 thousdted restatement to IFRS-EU and considering
hyperinflation and other adjustments) and it wasdgd into 441 442 578 shares.

ENEA S.A. is the Parent of the ENEA Group, whichea81 December 2013 comprised also 15 subsidjaries
4 indirect subsidiaries and 1 associate.

The notes presented on pages 11-105 constituteegral part of the consolidated financial stateisien

11
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(all amounts in PLN ‘000, unless specified otheayi

The financial statements have been prepared ursdengtion that the Company will be able to continse
a going concern in the foreseeable future. No oistances occur that would indicate a threat to the

Company’s operation as a going concern.

1.2. Composition of the Management Board and the Supersory Board

As at 31 December 2013, the composition of the Maneent Board was as follows:

Krzysztof Zamasz - President of the Company’s Manaant Board,

Dalida Gepfert - Member of the Company’s ManageniBaydrd responsible for Financial Matters,
Grzegorz Kinelski - Member of the Company’s ManagatrBoard responsible for Commercial Matters,

Pawel Orlof - Member of the Company’s ManagemerdarBaesponsible for Corporate Matters.

On 11 January 2013 Mr Krzysztof Zborowski — Membéithe Management Board for Energy Production
resigned from the Management Board, effective ftbendate of the statement.

On 11 March 2013 the Supervisory Board dismissedhambers of the Management Board of ENEA S.A.,
effective from 11 March 2013 and at the same tipgomted Mr Krzysztof Zamasz to the position of the
President of the Company’s Management Board, Me@orz Kinelski to the position of the Member of the
Company’s Management Board responsible for CommkeMatters, Mr Pawet Orlof to the position of the
Member of the Company’s Management Board respan$ilblCorporate Matters.

On 9 April 2013 the Supervisory Board appointed ldedida Gepfert to the position of the Member of th

Company’s Management Board responsible for FinaMaddters, effective from 23 April 2013.

As at 1 January 2013, the composition of the Sugery Board for the Bterm of office was as follows:
Wojciech Chmielewski — the Chairman of the SupemyiBoard,

Jeremi Mordasewicz,

Michat Kowalewski,

Sandra Malinowska,

Matgorzata Aniotek,

Stawomir Brzeziski,

Przemystaw tycziyski,

Tadeusz Miklosz,

Graham Wood,

Michat Jarczyiski.

On 27 March 2013 Mr Graham Wood resigned from thsitpn of the Member of Supervisory Board,
effective from 24 April 2013. On 24 April 2013 Mtdatgorzata Aniotek resigned from the position of
the Member of Supervisory Board. On 24 April 2018 tGeneral Shareholders’ Meeting appointed
Mrs Matgorzata Niezgoda and Mr Torbjérn Wahlbordhe Supervisory Board.

On 24 June 2013 Mr Michat Jar@ski resigned from the position of the Member of &ugsory Board of
ENEA S.A.
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On 22 January 2014 Mr. Torbjérn Wahlborg resigrreanfthe position of the Member of Supervisory Board

The resignation was submitted together with théceaif the Company’s shares sale by Vattenfall AB.
2. Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements were peepiar accordance with International Financial R&pgr
Standards as endorsed by the European Union (“EER$ and were approved by the Management Board of
ENEA S.A.

The Management Board of the Parent Company hasitssbest knowledge as to the application of steshgla
and interpretations as well as measurement methadsprinciples applicable to the individual itemis o
the consolidated financial statements of the ENEAUB in accordance with IFRS-EU as at 31 December
2013. The presented statements and explanatiomsk®n prepared using due diligence. These coasadid

financial statements were audited by a certifieditau

3. Description of key accounting principles

The key accounting principles applied in the prafian of these consolidated financial statement lieeen

presented below. The principles have been appbedistently in all presented financial periods.

3.1. Basis for preparation

These consolidated financial statements for thenfiral year ended 31 December 2013 have been prepar
compliance with the requirements of IFRS-EU.

These consolidated financial statements have besgpaped on the historical cost basis, except foarftial
assets measured at fair value through profit os,ldsmancial assets available for sale and shaseda

payments.

3.2. Consolidation principles

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries include all entities whose financiadl @perational policy may be managed by the Gradgich
usually results from the majority of votes in ther@pany’s decision-making bodies. When assessinghehe
the Group controls an entity, the existence andachpf potential voting rights that may be exerdise
exchanged at a given moment are taken into coraidar The subsidiaries are subject to consolidatising
the full method as from the date of the Group’suag®tion of control over such entities. They are not

consolidated starting from the date when the Gtoses control over them.

The cost of business combination, which is not urmemmon control, is measured as the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued arilifies incurred or assumed at the date of exchang
Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingentbiities acquired in a business combination are suesd
initially at their fair value at the acquisitiontdairrespective of the minority interest, if any.

The Group measures non-controlling interests irpprion to their share in the fair value of ideiatifie

acquired net assets. In the following periods thkier of non-controlling interests accounts for &mount
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recognized at the initial recognition adjusted bgiriges in the subsidiary’s net assets in propottidhe non-
controlling interests’ share. The total comprehemsncome is allocated to non-controlling interest®n

when it results in their negative value.

If a gain for a bargain purchase occurs, the Grueapfies the fair value of each net asset acquired.

If following the verification, the outcome remainsgative, it is recognized in profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealiaéts on transactions between Group’s companies ar
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminateléss there is an impairment indicator of the timmed
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries havenbelganged where necessary to ensure consistenhy wit

the policies adopted by the Group.

(b) Associates and joint-ventures

Associates include all entities over which the Grdwas a substantial influence without exercisingtics,
which usually results from holding 20%-50% of tleat number of votes in an entity’s decision-making
bodies. Investments in associates are accountedsiog the equity method and are initially recogdiz
at cost. Any surplus of the cost over the fair eabfiidentifiable net assets of an associate #isecficquisition
date is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is incldda the carrying amount of investments with impzent
measured in relation to the total investment valiey surplus of the Group's interest in the net anto
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingelibilities over the acquisition cost after revdloa

is immediately recognized in profit or loss.

Joint-ventures include all entities over which ENESAA. exercises control together with other comesni
based on contractual arrangements. Investmentsimtlyjcontrolled entities are accounted for usitng

equity method in the same way as investments ioc&ges.

The post-acquisition Group’s share in profits @skes of associates and/or joint-ventures is rezedrin the
profit or loss, and Group’s share of post-acquisitmovements in other capitals is recognized iremoth
capitals. The carrying value of investments is sidid by post-acquisition cumulative changes in tgqui
When the Group’s share of losses in an associaj@irgrventure equals or exceeds its interest eehuity
accounted associate or joint venture, including@thgr unsecured receivables, recognition of furkheses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group dra obligation or has made payments on behalhef t

investee.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Granmg associates or joint-ventures are eliminated
proportionally to the Group’s interest in these iteeg. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairmenheftransferred asset. Accounting policies of aases and
jointly controlled entities have been changed whexeessary to ensure consistency with the polaiepted

by the Group.
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3.3. Business combinations/acquisitions

Business combinations/acquisitions of entities meéy@ommon control are settled using the acquisition

method, presented in Note 3.2.(a).

Business combinations/acquisitions of entities uraemmon control do not fall within the scope oRI&
regulations. Considering the lack of detailed IFR&ulations, in line with the guidelines laid doimnAS 8 —
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimated Errors, the entity ought to develop accounting

principles applicable to such transactions.

The Group adopted an accounting policy accordinghizh such transactions are recognized in bookesl

The acquirer recognizes the assets, equity anditied of the acquiree at their current book vahdjusted
only for the purpose of applying the same accogngirinciples for the combined entities beginningnfrthe
acquisition date. Goodwill and negative goodwilhist recognized. Any difference between the bodkeaf
the net assets acquired and the fair value of dlyenpnt in the form of equity instruments and/oresgiven
by the entity is recognized in the equity of theoGp.

When applying the method based on book values, acatige data for presented historical periods ate n

restated.

3.4. Foreign currency transactions and measurement of feign currency balances

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Balances presented in the financial statementsidiVidual Group entities are measured in the cuyeof
the primary economic environment in which the gntiarries out its business activity (functional remcy).
The consolidated financial statements are presentéde Polish zloty (PLN), which is the functionahd

presentation currency of all Group companies.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated upeir tinitial recognition to the functional curren@at
the exchange rate ruling as at the transaction date

As at the end of the reporting period, monetaryetssand liabilities denominated in foreign currescare
translated at the closing rate (the average ex&hasg published by the National Bank of Polandtathe

measurement date).

Exchange gains and losses arising from settleméribreign currency transactions and measurement of

monetary assets and liabilities denominated inidoreurrencies are recognized in profit or loss.

3.5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is measured at atiguisprice or manufacturing cost less accumulated
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depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

ENEA Group applied the optional exemption providedin IFRS 1, and adopted the fair value of sa&ldct

items of property, plant and equipment as the ddetost as at the date of transition to IFRS-EU.

Further expenditures are recognized in the carrgimgunt of a given fixed asset or recognized asparste
fixed asset (where appropriate) only if it is prbleathat the Group will generate economic bendfits
connection with such an asset, whereas the camt @&@m may be reliably measured. Any other expgareli

incurred for repair and maintenance are recogniz@adofit or loss in the period when they are inedr.

If a fixed asset is replaced, the cost of the mgmacomponent of the asset is recognized in iteyiogy
amount, whereas the carrying amount of the replamedponent is derecognized from the statement of

financial position irrespective of whether it haeh depreciated separately, and recognized int prafss.

Land is not subject to depreciation. Other fixedets are depreciated using the straight-line methea

the expected useful life of the asset. Depreciai®rcalculated based on the gross value reduced by
the residual value, provided it is material. Eaciterial component of a fixed asset with a diffeneseful life

is depreciated separately.

The useful lives of fixed assets are as follows:

- buildings and structures 10 — 80 years
including power grids 33 years

- technical equipment and machines 4 — 50 years

- vehicles 5 — 20 years

- other fixed assets 4 — 25 years

The residual value and useful lives of fixed asaeg¢sreviewed at least on an annual basis.

Depreciation begins when a given asset has beemissioned for use. Depreciation is no longer recegh
when an asset is to be sold or derecognized fremstdtement of financial position.

The Group receives fixed assets constituting etégtinfrastructure free of charge. Until 31 Dedssn 2009,
fixed assets taken over were measured at fair ughoa initial recognition, with the correspondingtry to
deferred income from fixed assets received freehafge, settled over time proportionally to depton of
these fixed assets. Since 1 January 2010 compoogatsctricity infrastructure received free of of@ have

been fully recognized in revenues at the momeatqtiisition.

Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets, wtoaktitute the difference between revenue frorassahd

the carrying amount of the fixed asset disposedrefrecognized in profit or loss.

3.6. Perpetual usufruct of land

Land owned by the State Treasury, local governmentkeir associations may be used based on theafg
perpetual usufruct (PU). The perpetual usufruclaafl is a special property right based on whichpprty

may be used with the exclusion or other partiesthadbject (right) may be disposed of.
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Depending on the method of acquisition, the Grdapsifies the right of perpetual usufruct as fokow

1. PU acquired by virtue of the law free of chargespiant to a decision of the Voivode or local
government authorities is recognized as an opeyidase;

2. PU acquired for consideration from third partiegdésognized as an asset under right of perpetual
usufruct at acquisition price reduced by depremmatiharges;

3. PU acquired under a land perpetual usufruct agreeerdered into with the State Treasury or local
governments is recognized as a surplus of thefdagtnent over the annual fee, disclosed as an asset
under right of perpetual usufruct and depreciated.

The right of perpetual usufruct is amortized in pfegiod for which it was granted (40-99 years).

3.7. Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arising from an acquisition results fronsarplus of the consideration paid, non-controliimigrests
and fair value of shares previously held in thetgrdver the Group’s share in the net fair valuettod
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingenbiiies as of the acquisition date.

If negative goodwill occurs, the Group verifies tfar value of each net asset acquired. If follogvin
the verification, the goodwill remains negativeisitmmediately recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset attcasd subsequently measured at cost less accuighulate
impairment loss.

For impairment testing purposes, goodwill is altedato each cash generating unit (CGU) that shbeitkfit
from the post-combination synergy. CGU to which goadwill is allocated are tested for impairmenten
a year or more frequently if according to reliabgsumptions, impairment could occur. If the recalbbr
amount of a CGU is lower than its carrying amotiné impairment loss is first assigned in orderaduce
the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to thaB@ and then to other assets of the unit pro rata t
the carrying amount of each asset belonging therEe impairment loss recognized for goodwill ist no

reversed in the following period.

(b) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets include: computer softwlarenses as well as other intangible assets. gitténassets
are measured at acquisition price or manufactudost less accumulated amortization and accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortization is calculated based on the straighd-Imethod, taking into account the estimated udiéul

amounting to:

- for server licenses and software 2 yddérs;
- for workstation licenses and software as well ds\drus software 4 - 10 years;
- for other intangible assets 2 -7ygear

3.8. Research and development expenses

R&D expenses are recognized in profit or lossémriod when they are incurred.
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Like other intangible assets, R&D expenses medtirgcapitalization criteria presented below are suesd
at acquisition price or manufacturing cost lessuandated amortization and accumulated impairmesgds.
Amortization is calculated based on the straight-lmethod, taking into account the estimated udédéyl

which is 2-7 years.

Capitalization criteria:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intallgi asset so that it will be available for useales

- the intention to complete the intangible assetus®lor sell it;

- ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- the way the intangible asset will generate probdblare economic benefits. Among other things,
the enterprise should demonstrate the existenae rofirket for the output of the intangible asset or
the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be usatgrnally, the usefulness of the intangible gsset

- the availability of adequate technical, financiatlaother resources to complete the developmentand
use or sell the intangible asset;

- the ability to reliably measure the expenditurerilaitable to the intangible asset during its

development.

3.9. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that may be directly attributatdehe acquisition, construction or production afualifying
asset are capitalized as a portion of the acquisjirice or manufacturing cost of the asset. Ofiegrowing
costs are recognized as an expense in the peegdatk incurred.

Capitalization of borrowing costs commences at ldier of when expenditures for the asset are being
incurred or when borrowing costs are being incurfidte borrowing costs are no longer capitalized rwéak

substantially all the activities necessary to prephe asset for its intended use are complete.

3.10. Leases

Lease agreements that transfer substantially alfitfks and rewards incidental to ownership toGheup are

classified as finance leases. Leases other thandileases are recognized as operating leases.

The object of a finance lease is recognized inabgets as at the lease commencement date at tae daw
the fair value of the leased asset or the preseluievof the minimum lease payments. Each finanasele
payment is divided into an amount reducing the i@eof the liability and financial expenses socaproduce
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balasfcthe liability. The interest component of edease
payment is recognized in the income statement therdease period in such a way as to arrive akedfi
periodic interest rate compared to the unsettlakility amount. Depreciable assets acquired unith@née
lease agreements are depreciated over their ugeful

Lease payments under an operating lease (lesspaciakpromotional offers from the lessor) are mriped

as an expense on a straight-line basis over tise keam.
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3.11. Impairment of assets

The Group’s assets are tested for impairment whanthere are indications that an impairment losghii

have occurred.

Non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognized up to the amouynthich the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount isitifeehof: the fair value less the costs of bringamgasset
into condition for its sale or value in use (ilee fpresent estimated value of the future cash flewpected to

be derived from an asset or cash-generating Wat)the purpose of impairment testing, assets amepgd at

the lowest possible level with respect to whichesafe cash flows may be identified (cash-generatimts).

All impairment losses are recognized in profit osd. Impairment losses may be reversed in subsequen
periods (except from losses on goodwill) if eveotsur justifying the lack or change in the impainnef

assets.

Financial assets

Financial assets are analyzed as at each repaidiiegso as to determine whether there are anyaitiolis of
their impairment. It is assumed that financial &s$mave been impaired if there are objective irtthoa that
one or more events having a negative impact oregtienated future cash flows relating to the ashatse

occurred.

Individual financial instruments with material vallare analyzed for impairment on a case-by-casis.bas

Other financial assets are analyzed for impairrbgrgroups with similar credit risk.

The principles for recognition of impairment lossas financial assets have been presented in detail
Note 3.13.

3.12. Investment property

Investment property is maintained in order to gateerental income, for capital appreciation orbfoth. For

measuring investment property after the initiabigaaition, the Group selected the acquisition costieh

Investments in property are depreciated accordmghe straight-line method. Depreciation begins in
the month of its commissioning. The estimated uddgéuperiod is as follows:

Buildings 25 — 33 years

3.13. Financial assets

Financial instruments are classified to the follogvcategories: financial assets measured at faievarough

profit or loss, loans and receivables, investmbetd to maturity and financial assets availablestle.

The classification is based on the purpose of aitgguian investment. The assets are classified upigial
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recognition and then reviewed at each reporting,datequired or accepted by IAS 39.

(&) Financial assets measured at fair value throughfipar loss

The category includes two sub-categories:

- financial assets held for trading if they havebe@cquired principally for the purpose of beingdsa
the short term;

- financial assets designated as measured atdiaie vhrough profit or loss upon initial recognitio

These assets are recognized as current asséis,@ompany intends to sell or realize them witlinmonths

from the end of the reporting period.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets withroéed or determinable payments, which are noteglion
the active market, not classified as derivativeseyT arise when the Group spends cash, deliverssgood
services directly to the debtor without the intentof classifying them as receivables held foritvgd

Loans and receivables are classified as currentsaaggheir maturity as at the end of the repgrferiod does
not exceed 12 months. Loans and receivables whaserity as at the end of the reporting period edsee
12 months are classified as non-current assetsnd.a@ad receivables are recognized in the statewfent
financial position under trade and other receivableoans and receivables are measured at amoxtizsd

using the effective interest rate.

(c) Investments held to maturity
Investments held to maturity are non-derivativaaficial assets with determined or determinable patsne
and fixed maturity that the Group intends to andbe to hold to maturity. Financial assets heldntturity

are measured at amortized cost using the effectigeest rate.

(d) Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets available for sale (AFS) are remivdtive financial assets designated as availttlsale or

not classified to any of the remaining categorigss category includes mainly shares in unrelatedigs.
AFS financial assets are recognized as non-curaseets if the Group does not intend to dispose of

the investment within 12 months from the end ofrégorting period.

Acquisition and sale of financial assets is recpgdias at the date of the transaction, i.e. the vdagn
the Group undertakes to purchase or sell a giveetakinancial assets are initially recognizedaat ¥alue
increased by transaction costs, except for investenelassified as financial assets measured atvédire
through profit or loss, which are initially measdirat fair value without transaction costs.

Financial assets are derecognized from the aceaumécords if the rights to the related cash fldhwase
expired or have been transferred and the Grouptiaasferred substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to their ownership.

Financial assets available for sale and financdaéts measured at fair value through profit or éwssinitially

recognized at fair value. AFS financial assetsraeasured at acquisition price less impairment B#si¢ is
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not possible to determine their fair value and tdeynot have a fixed maturity. Loans and receivalalee
measured at amortized cost using the effectivegnteate.

The effects of measurement of financial assetsiatvhlue through profit or loss are recognizedgiaofit or
loss in the period when they occurred. The effe€tmeasurement of AFS financial assets are recedriiz
other comprehensive income, except for impairmessds and exchange gains or losses on monetatg.asse
Upon derecognition of an asset classified as availdor sale from the accounting records, the total
accumulated profits and losses previously recoghizeother comprehensive income are recognizedafitp

or loss.

The fair value of investments quoted in an actiwkat is determined with reference to their curpantchase
price. If there is no active market for financiakats (or the securities are not quoted), the Gdetgrmines
their fair value using adequate measurement teabsigvhich include: recent transactions conducteateiun
arm’s length conditions, comparison to other insteats which are identical in substance, an analykis
discounted cash flows, option valuation models @thér techniques and models widely applied in taeket,

adjusted to the specific situation of the issuer.

(e) Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain hedging instrumertghanclude derivatives and non-derivatives irpees of
foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedgesash flow hedges. Hedges of foreign exchandeonsfirm
commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Wradocuments the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, along with its risgknagement objectives and its strategy for unkiega
various hedge transactions.

Derivatives are accounted for in accordance wiih ¥alue or cash flow hedge accounting, if all bkt
following conditions are met:

- at the inception of the hedge there is formalgiegtion and documentation of the hedging relatigmand
the Group’s risk management objective and strategyndertaking the hedge,

- the hedge is expected to be highly effective dhieving offsetting changes in fair value or cakiwé
attributable to the hedged risk, consistently wtité originally documented risk management strafegyhat
particular hedging relationship,

- for cash flow hedges, a forecast transaction ithéfte subject of the hedge must be highly prabdaioid
must present an exposure to variations in cashsfinat could ultimately affect profit or loss,

- the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliablgsue=d,

- the hedge is assessed on an ongoing basis aadniletd to have been highly effective throughowt th

financial reporting periods for which the hedge dasignated.

If a fair value hedge is used, it is accountedafofollows:

- the gain or loss from remeasuring the hedgingunsent at fair value is recognized in profit osdpand

- the gain or loss on the hedged item attributablehe hedged risk adjusts the carrying amount of
the hedged item and is recognized in profit or pisis applies also if the hedged item is an abéldor-sale

financial asset, whose changes in value are rezedmirectly in revaluation reserve).
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The Group discontinues fair value hedge accouriting
- the hedging instrument expires, is sold, ternddair exercised,
- the hedge no longer meets the criteria for heageunting, or

- the Group revokes the designation.

Cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure tohiityain cash flows that is attributable to a peutar risk
associated with a recognized asset or liability dighly probable forecast transaction and coulelcaprofit

or loss. A forecast transaction is an uncommittgidaimticipated future transaction.

If a cash flow hedge is used, it is accounted $ofioows:
- the portion of the gain or loss on the hedgimgirument that is determined to be an effectivdgeeis
recognized in revaluation reserve,

- the ineffective portion of the gain or loss oe thedging instrument is recognized in profit oslos

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequeaflylts in the recognition of a financial asset dinancial
liability, the associated gains or losses that weo®gnized in revaluation reserve are reclasstfiegrofit or
loss in the same period or periods during whichasget acquired or liability assumed affects prafitoss.
However, if the Group expects that all or a portadna loss recognized in revaluation reserve wit he
recovered in one or more future periods, it redi@ssto profit or loss the amount that is not exted to be

recovered.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequeatlylts in the recognition of a non-financial assea non-
financial liability, or a forecast transaction famon-financial asset or non-financial liabilitycoenes a firm
commitment for which fair value hedge accountin@plied, the Group removes the associated gaids an
losses that were recognized in revaluation resane includes them in the initial cost or other yiag

amount of the asset or liability.

The Group discontinues cash flow hedge accounfitigei hedging instrument expires, is sold, terngdadr
exercised or no longer meets the criteria for heggmounting. In this case, the cumulative gainosslon
the hedging instrument is recognized in revaluatieserve until the hedged transaction occurs. Be ca
the hedged transaction is no longer expected tarpcelated cumulative net gain or loss recognized

revaluation reserve is immediately recognized wofipor loss.

Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge andnoorgoing basis, the Group documents whether ttgihe

instrument is highly effective in offsetting chasga fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

() Impairment

At each reporting date, the Group verifies whethere is any objective evidence indicating impaintnef

a financial asset or a group of financial assets.
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If such evidence exists in case of financial asaetslable for sale, the total accumulated lossesgnized in
equity, determined as the difference between tlyisition price and their current fair value lesssgible
impairment losses recognized previously in prafitoss, are excluded from equity and recognizepkafit or
loss. Impairment losses recognized in profit orsl@nd relating to equity instruments are not readbrs
corresponding to profit or loss. The reversal opainment losses on debt securities is recognizgaafit or
loss if the fair value increased as a result ofseghent events after the recognition of impairnment

the periods following the recognition of the impaént loss.

If there are indications of impairment of loans aedeivables or investments held to maturity messuat
amortized cost, impairment losses are determindgteadifference between the carrying amount ofatbsets
and the present value of estimated future cashsfldiscounted using the original effective intemede for
such assets (i.e. the effective interest rate ttketh upon initial recognition for assets baseé dimed interest
rate and the effective interest rate determinedtterlast revaluation of assets based on a floatiteyest
rate). Impairment losses are recognized in prafitogs. Impairment is reversed if in subsequentoper
the impairment decreases and the reduction maytthbuded to events that occurred after the impaintn
recognition. As a result of reversal of the impaint the carrying amount of financial assets shawd
exceed the amortized cost which would be determi@tino impairment loss been recognized. Revefsal o

impairment losses is recognized in profit or loss.

If there are indications of impairment of unquotslity instruments measured at acquisition pricetifair
fair value may not be determined reliably), the antoof the impairment loss is determined as thgedifice
between the carrying amount of the assets andrésept value of the estimated future cash flowsodisted

using the current market rate of return for similaancial assets. Such impairment losses areavatrsed.

3.14. CO, emission rights

CO, emission rights granted free of charge under tla¢ioNal Allocation Plan Krajowy Plan Rozdziatu
Uprawniei) and additional C@®emission rights purchased for the purpose of rgdiem i.e. fulfilling the
CO, emission settlement obligation, are presentedua®mt intangible assets which are not amortized bu
tested for impairment and are presented sepatatelyrrent assets.
CO, emission rights granted free of charge for theegiinancial year are recognized at nil cost.
CO, emission rights purchased are measured at adquigitice less any impairment loss.
CO, emission rights are registered in the followingugps:

— green CER,

— free-of-charge and purchased EUA.
Within the above mentioned groups, costs are razedraccording to FIFO (first in, first out) methots
regards C@emissions associated with the electricity productrocess, the Group is obliged to settle them
through presentation of a specified quantity of ,Gnission rights for redemption. The costs related
fulfilling the aforementioned obligation are recdgd in the accounting records systematically thhmut the

annual reporting period, in proportion to the ataral planned volume of production of electricity.

A provision is created for estimated €®missions during the reporting period, and chargedosts of
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operating activities. The amount of the provisipnesented in the statement of financial positiothiwi
liabilities, is determined in compliance with th@léwing rules:

— the amount recognized as a provision should bédise estimate of the expenditure required to séttle
annual periods, the present obligation at the tegpdate,

— first, the provision is established on the basithefvalue of emission rights owned on the repgrtiate,

— if the demand for emission rights is not coveredtbg quantity of owned rights, a provision is
established for the volume of uncovered estimatats®ons, on the basis of the purchase prices of
emission rights as specified in forward contractslen(if the delivery date is set before the datactdal
settlement of the obligation, i.e. redemption ofssion rights),

— if the demand for emission rights is not coveredthsy quantity of emission rights owned, due and
purchased on forward date, then a provision isbésteed for the volume of uncovered estimated

emissions, on the basis of market quotes (Bluersexgt the reporting date.

The liability (provision) due to COemission is settled through redemption of emissigints.

Sales revenues and the cost of ;,Ggnission rights sold are presented in operatirggprire and costs,
respectively.
The value of the emission rights sold is determiaecbrding to FIFO in the given group of emissiights:

— green CER,

— free-of-charge and purchased EUA.

3.15. Inventory

Inventories are measured at acquisition price arufacturing cost not exceeding the net sellingepric

Cost is determined according to the FIFO methoeeixor production coal, biomass and limestone mwd
whose costs are determined in line with weightestaye acquisition price method.

Certificates of origin acquired for redemption dodresale, as well as self produced certificatespaesented

in inventory.

As at the end of the reporting period, the acquaedificates of origin are measured at acquisipone, less
impairment losses.

Certificates of origin produced by the Group areogmized at the moment of producing electricity #srat
the date on which their issuance has become prejalmless there is a reasonable doubt regardimg th
President of Energy Regulatory Office ability tesus them. The certificates of origin on self prastlic
electricity are measured at market price on thé day of the month in which the energy related e t
certificates was produced.

The deadline for complying with the requirementeftificate redemption or substitute fee paymepires

on 31 March of the following year.

During the financial year and until 31 March of flelowing year the Company presents certificatesrain

for redemption on a monthly basis in order to fuifs obligation regarding the financial year. Redption of
certificates of origin is recognized in the accangtrecords based on a redemption decision issyed b

the President of the Energy Regulatory Office, ttezleemed -certificates being subject to detailed
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identification.

3.16. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in handdepbsits with banks and other short-term investse
maturing within three months, with high liquidiths at the end of the reporting period, cash is nnembsat

face value.

3.17. Share capital

The share capital of the Group is recognized inahmunt stipulated in the by-laws and registerethi
National Court Register, adjusted by the effectshgperinflation as well as settlement of the efeof
business combinations and acquisitions, respegtivéhcreases in the share capital covered by
the shareholders as at the end of the reportiriggpand not yet registered in the National CourgiRter are

also disclosed as share capital.

3.18. Loans, borrowings and debt securities

Upon initial recognition financial liabilities armeasured at fair value less transaction costs rieduby
the Group.
Following their initial recognition, financial lidlities are measured at amortized cost using tliectéve

interest method.

3.19. Income tax (including deferred income tax)

Income tax presented in the statement of profibss and other comprehensive income includes thermu

and deferred portion.

The current tax liability is calculated based oe taxable profit (tax base) for a given reportireyiqd.
The taxable profit/(loss) differs from net accougtiprofit (loss) due to the exclusion of taxableome and
expenses classified as tax-deductible in the foligwears as well as expenses and revenue whitmevier

be subject to taxation. Tax liabilities are caltedabased on tax rates applicable in a given rigppeeriod.

The deferred tax is a tax of from events that asglin a given period, recognized on the accrualsbia
the accounting records of the period but realirefifure.
The balance sheet liability method is used to dateuthe deferred tax. The method is characterlzgd

temporary differences between the carrying andaitagunt of assets and liabilities.

The carrying value of assets and liabilities redéoggh in the accounting records is the base vallmghwis
compared to the tax amount and tax loss dedudtitflgure.

Differences between the carrying amount and tadevaf an asset or liability may include:
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e a positive amount resulting in an increase of thaurg taxable base upon settlement or
realization of the carrying value of the assetaility;

e a negative amount resulting in a reduction of theure taxable base upon settlement or
realization of the carrying value of the assetaility.

If the carrying amount of an asset or liabilityeigual to its tax amount, no temporary differencasio

Temporary differences multiplied by appropriate tates produce assets for deductible and defeeed t

provisions for taxable differences.

The deferred tax provision resulting from taxaldeporary differences between the tax value of assad

liabilities and their carrying amount is recognizedhe financial statements in its full amount.

The deferred tax asset is recognized if it is pbbdahat the Group will generate taxable incomeciwhwill

allow it to deduct temporary differences or uselteses in the future.

The Company does not recognize a deferred tax aeddiability if they result from the initial regaition of
an asset or liability arising from a transactiohastthan a business combination and if the traisadbes not
have an impact on the gross financial profit/losstte taxable profit when it is effected. Additidiga
the deferred tax liability is not recognized witkspect to temporary differences arising upon initia

recognition of goodwill or goodwill whose amortiiat is not regarded as a tax-deductible expense.

No deferred tax asset or provision is created ompteary differences arising from investments irated
parties that jointly meet the following two conditis:
« the Group is able to control the timing of the mad of the temporary differences; and

« itis probable that the temporary differences wilt reverse in the foreseeable future.

The deferred income tax is determined based onrates (and regulations) which are expected to be
applicable when an asset is used and the lialsiittled, on the basis of the tax rates (and reigukt which
were legally or actually applicable as at the ehtthe reporting period.

If the tax law allows changes in tax rates, thaltatnount of assets and liabilities is calculateddcordance
with various tax rates.

If changes in tax rates occur in the period frortedwrining the deferred tax assets or provisionshesr
settlement, the effects of measurement of assetprovisions are included in the reporting periodvhich

the tax regulations have been amended.

Further, as at the end of the reporting periodhatlatest, the entity tests the assets for impantnmeorder to
check whether they still can be settled. If genenatf taxable income sufficient to use the defertiax asset

in part or in whole is not probable, a correspogdimpairment loss on the asset should be recognized

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss fagigen period, except for instances when deferred ta
1. pertains to a transaction or event that is geized directly in equity, in which case it is also

recognized in the relevant other item of equityetepng on an event it results from;
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2. results from business combinations, in whicbesait affects the value of goodwill or the surpids

the interest in the net fair value of assets owsiriess combination costs.

Deferred tax asset and liabilities are set ofhdre is a legally enforceable right to set off arent tax asset
against a current tax liability when the deferraxiasset and liability relate to income taxes kg the same

taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

3.20. Employee benefits

The following types of employee benefits are preddy the Group:

A. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits include but are notitéid to: monthly wages, salaries, annual bonuses,
electricity allowance, short-term paid leave wittcial security contributions, industry specific lbenand

voluntary redundancy programme.

Liability due to short-term (accrued) paid leaverfpensation for paid leave) even if employees ate n
entitled to receive payment in lieu of holiday.

In 2013 the Group initiated the Voluntary RedundaRcogramme. The Programme assumes that employees
who decide to terminate the employee contracts invithe Programme period, will receive financial

compensation.

B. Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans of the Group include:

1) Retirement benefits
Employees retiring (eligible for disability bensalitare entitled to receive retirement benefitshi@ form of
cash compensation. The value of such benefits dispemthe length of service and the remuneratioeived

by the employee. The related liabilities are estadaising actuarial methods.

2) Electricity allowance for pensioners

Retiring employees who have worked for the Groupafbleast one year are entitled to a reduced pice
consumed energy amounting to 3,000 kWh/year. le cdsan employee’s death, the right is transfetced
his/her spouse if that person receives a familpwalhce. The related liabilities are estimated usictyarial

methods.

Pensioners and disability pensioners acquire tte to an electricity allowance in the amount 0083&Wh x
80% of the electricity price and the variable comgmt of the transmission charge and 100% the fixed
network charge and subscription charge at the esinghe rate household tariff. The equivalent il gaice

a year: by 15 May and by 15 September, each tintleeimmount of the half of the annual equivalent.
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3) Appropriation to the Company’s Social Benefits& for pensioners

Pursuant to the Collective Labor Agreement, whdautating the annual appropriation to the Sociah&és
Fund, the Group also takes into consideration peess entitled to the benefits. The liability i€ognized
proportionally to the expected period of performimgrk by employees. The value of the provision is
estimated using actuarial methods.

Liabilities relating to the benefits referred topoints 1 — 3 are estimated by an actuary usingtbgected

unit credit method. The total value of actuarisahgaand losses is recognized in other compreheitsteame.

C. Other long-term employee benefits
1) Jubilee bonuses

Other long-term employee benefits at ENEA S.A.udel jubilee bonuses. Their value is dependent en th
length of service and the remuneration receivedhieyemployee. The related liabilities are estimatsishg

actuarial methods. The total value of actuariahgand losses is recognized in profit or loss.

D. Defined contribution plan
1) Social security contributions

The social security system in Poland is a statgmarame, in accordance with which the Group is @ditp
make social security contributions for employeegmthey become due. No legal or constructive ofiiga
has been imposed on the Company to pay future itenelfating to social security. The costs of ciimttions

pertaining to the current period are recognizethieyGroup in profit or loss as the costs of empéalyenefits.
2) Employee Pension Scheme

Pursuant to Appendix No. 18 to the Collective LaBgreement, ENEA S.A. operates an Employee Pension
Scheme in the form of unit-linked group employesuiance in line with the statutory principles amdier

conditions negotiated with the labor unions.

The Employee Pension Scheme is available to alllemaps of ENEA S.A. after one year of service,
irrespective of the type of their employment cocitra
Employees join the Employee Pension Scheme unddpliowing terms and conditions:

- the insurance is group life insurance with insgeprotection;

- the amount of the basic premium is set at 7% efarticipant’s salary;

- 90% of the basic premium is allocated to investorppremium and 10% to insurance protection.

E. Share-based payments
Share-based payments relate to equity-settledsbr-gettled transactions in which the Group receseggices

(work performed by employees) as considerationtgoequity instruments (shares) or their cash exjant.
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The Group recognizes the services provided undgityesettled share-based payments and the corrdsppn
increase in equity upon their receipt. If the segsirendered in share-based payment transactionsiohde
classified as assets, they are recognized as a cost

The value of such cost is determined based onahevdlue and measured at grant date. As the &irevof
the services provided by employees may not be méted directly, it is estimated based on the failue of

equity instruments granted.

In cash-settled share-based payments the Groupunesdss liability at fair value as at each repagtdate and

as at the settlement date, whereas any changles iralue are recognized in profit or loss for segiperiod.

3.21. Provisions

Provisions are created if the Group has a predaigation (legal or constructive) as a result gfast event,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources edying economic benefits will be required to settie
obligation and the amount of the obligation canddmbly estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the bdsha&® of the expenditure required to settle thesent

obligation as at the end of the reporting period.

Provision for certificates of origin and energy fl@mance certificates

At the end of the reporting period the Group redpgm a provision for redemption or substitute fee.
The provision amount is based on the number ofificates of origin and on the number of energy
performance certificates respectively accounting fioee difference between the number of certificates
redeemed as at the end of the reporting periodr@ndumber required for redemption by the Energy bad

Energy Effectiveness Law respectively.

Provisions are measured first at cost of unredeeceetificates of origin held as the end of the ndpg
period, second - on the basis of weighted averaige ;n session and off-session transactions clesdtie
Property Rights Market operated by the Polish Pd#vahange during the month preceding the repodatg
at which the measurement of the provision is deited) and if there are no such transactions oretien
shortage of specific certificates on the markeg¢yvpnting the Company from acquiring a required nemus
certificates to be redeemed according to the Enkagy, the missing amount of certificates is meagatethe

unit substitute fee for the given financial year.

The provision for redemption of energy performacesificates amount is calculated on the numbemnafrgy
performance certificates expressed in tons ofauilivealent accounting for the difference betweenrthmber

of certificates redeemed as at the end of the timgoperiod and the number required for redemptign
the Energy Efficiency Law. Provisions are measufidt at acquisition price of unredeemed energy
performance certificates held as the end of thertey period, second - on the basis of weighteeraye
price in session and off-session transactions dl@ethe Property Rights Market operated by thdsRol

Power Exchange during the month preceding the tieygodate at which the measurement of the provigon
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determined, and if there are no such transactiorikeve is a shortage of specific certificates lu market,
preventing the Company from acquiring a requirechiner of certificates to be redeemed according ¢ th
Energy Efficiency Law, the missing amount of céctifes is measured at the unit substitute feehi@igiven

financial year.

3.22. Revenue recognition

Sales revenue is measured at the fair value afdhsideration received or receivable less the vatloed tax,

discounts and rebates.

Revenue from the sales of energy and distributienvises is recognized upon delivery of the energy o
transmission services to the customer.

In order to determine the value of revenue for aoglefrom the last billing date to the end of tleporting
period, an estimate is made and recognized in tarsent of financial position under trade and othe

receivables.

Revenue from the sales of goods and materialscisgrézed when the entity has transferred to theebuy
the significant risks and rewards of ownership fed goods and materials it is probable that the @oin

benefits associated with the transaction will fimithe entity.

Revenue from lease of investment property is reizeghin the income statement according to the giitai

line method over the term of the lease.
Interest income is recognized on an accrual basigyuhe effective interest rate if its receiph@ doubtful.

Dividend income is recognized when the Company iaeghe right to receive the related payments.

3.23. Subsidies

The Group receives tangible fixed assets constgutelectricity infrastructure free of charge. Until
31 December 2009 such transactions were recogaiziir value as property, plant and equipment, thed
value was recognized under deferred income anigdeatver time in the profit or loss pro rata to degation
costs accrued on the received assets. Since 1rya?0 fixed assets constituting electricity istracture
received free of charge are recognized in full am@s revenue in profit or loss.

Other subsidies received by the Group (i.e. gramtthe form of other fixed assets and compensation
expenses incurred for other fixed assets) are rézed by the Group in the statement of financiaifan as
deferred income when there is reasonable assuthatthey will be received and that the Group wimply
with appropriate conditions related to such gra@tmnts received as compensation for costs alreedyred
by the Group are recognized on a systematic basisv@nue in profit or loss in the periods in whiké entity
recognizes as expenses the related costs. Gracgsvad by the Group as compensation for capital
expenditure incurred are recognized on a systerbatits in proportion to the depreciation chargesthsr

operating revenue in profit or loss over the uskfellof an asset.
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3.24. Connection fees

Revenue from connection fees for tasks complete@lbypecember 2009 is recognized in deferred income
and settled over the depreciation period of theneotion, at present determined as 35 years. Imdiah
statements the fees are recognized under longHabitities. At the end of each reporting perioke tfees up

to one-year maturity are reclassified to short-téatilities.

Advances for connection fees paid to the Groud BttDecember 2009 with connections commissionést af

1 January 2010 are recognized in full amount irenere.

3.25. Compensation to cover stranded costs originating &m early termination of long-term power and electrcity

sales contracts (LTC)

Compensation to cover the stranded costs is repedtin the profit or loss as revenue in the periskden the
related stranded costs are incurred.

Compensation to cover stranded costs is recogivizéet amount of advances due for a given finarmuéaiod

as determined in Appendix 4 to the Act on pringpte cover producers’ costs originating from early
termination of LTC of 29 June 2007 adjusted by atineated adjustment amount for the given period.
The compensation for stranded costs for the givaar ys settled by the President of the Energy Reguy
Office by 31 July of the subsequent year and bAGdust following the last year of LTC remainingforce.

3.26. Dividend payment

Payments of dividends to shareholders (includingomity shareholders for dividends of subsidiarias®
recognized as a liability in the financial statetseof the Group for the period when they were appdoby

the Parent’s shareholders.

3.27. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale include itemsfsatig the following criteria:

- their carrying amount will be recovered priralg through sale transactions rather than through
continuing use;

- the Management Board of the Company submittsales declaration and started to search actioelg f
potential buyer;

- the assets are available for immediate satledin current condition;

- the sale transaction is highly probable and begettled within 12 months of the date of thasiewg;

- the sales price is reasonable compared touhiertd fair value;

- the probability that changes to the asset diapplan will be made is low.

If the aforementioned criteria have been satistd@r the end of the reporting period, the assetas
reclassified at the end of the financial year pdéug the event. The classification change is rédi@dn the
reporting period when the aforementioned criteaaenbeen satisfied. Amortization/depreciation chargre
no longer applied starting from the date when geehis designated as held for sale.

Assets held for sale are measured at the lowehefet carrying amount or the fair value lesssussell.
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3.28.  Statement regarding application of International Fhancial Reporting Standards

3.28.1. Standards, Interpretations and amendmentotpublished Standards as adopted by the EU that
are not yet effective for annual periods ending o81 December 2013, but were early adopted by
the Group

The following new Standards, amendments to Staisdand Interpretations are not yet mandatorily éffec
for annual periods ending on 31 December 2013,have not been applied in preparing these conselidat
financial statements:
* |FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements for the reporting periods beginning
1 January 2014,
* |FRS 11Joint Arrangementsfor the reporting periods beginning 1 January£0
* |FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitiesfor the reporting periods beginning
1 January 2014,
* Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS C2nsolidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Othatitles: Transition Guidance for the
reporting periods beginning 1 January 2014,
* |AS 27 Separate Financial Statemer(®011)- for the reporting periods beginning 1 January
2014,
* |AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2811)r the reporting periods
beginning 1 January 2014,
* Amendments to IAS 3Einancial Instruments: PresentatiorOffsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities - for the reporting periods beginning 1 Januar§£0
* Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investriantities - for the reporting periods
beginning 1 January 2014,
e Amendments to IAS 36mpairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Discéssidior Non-
Financial Assets for the reporting periods beginning 1 Januar¥40
* Amendments to IAS 3%inancial Instruments: Recognition and Measurementovation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accountindor the reporting periods beginning
1 January 2014.

The Group plans to adopt these pronouncements thiegrbecome effective.

The Group is currently evaluating the impact ofvamnentioned new Standards, amendments to Standards
and Interpretations. However, it is not expectech&we a significant effect on its consolidated ficial

statements.

3.28.2. Standards and interpretations not yet endsed by the EU

The following new Standards, amendments to Stawsdand Interpretations are not yet mandatorily éffec
for annual periods ending on 31 December 2013,hmve not been applied in preparing these consetidat

financial statements:

* |IFRS 9Financial Instruments (2009)for the reporting periods beginning 1 January&0
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* Additions to IFRS Financial Instrument$2010)- for the reporting periods beginning 1 January
2018,

* Amendments to IFRS Binancial Instrumentsind IFRS Financial Instruments: Disclosures
for the reporting periods beginning 1 January 2018,

* |FRIC Interpretation 21 evies- for the reporting periods beginning 1 Januar¥20

e Amendments to IAS 19Employee Benefitsentitied Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions- for the reporting periods beginning 1 July 2014,

* Improvements to IFRS (2010-2012) - for the reparperiods beginning 1 July 2014,

* Improvements to IFRS (2011-2013) - for the reparperiods beginning 1 July 2014,

* |FRS 14Regulatory Deferral Accountsfor the reporting periods beginning 1 January&0

The Group plans to adopt these pronouncements thiegrbecome effective.

The Group has not yet analysed the likely impacth&f new Standards, amendments to Standards and
Interpretations on its financial position or perfance.

4. Restatement of comparative data due to an error angresentation changes

The comparative data presented in these consdlidisi@ncial statements derived from the approvedrfcial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 lwewe restated in order to maintain comparability.
Restatements are attributable to the following:
(a) the Group performed analysis of electricity balaganarket settlements and the imbalance of energy
sales and purchase, presented in the consolidiaigacial statements in trade and other receivables.
As the result of the analysis performed, the assktted to the imbalanced energy trade was
assessed to be incorrect and respective balancats3sDecember 2013, as well as at the end of
preceding reporting periods, i.e. 31 December 201?231 December 2011 were adjusted,
(b) changes in presentation in consolidated statenfepitodit or loss and other comprehensive income

connected mainly with energy cost purchased ortredég balancing market.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Perpetual usufruct of land

Intangible assets

Investment property

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Deferred tax assets

Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets measured at fair value througfit prdoss
Trade and other receivables

Current assets

CO;, emission rights

Inventory

Trade and other receivables

Current income tax receivables

Financial assets held to maturity

Financial assets measured at fair value througfit prdoss
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets held for sale

Total assets

31.12.2012
31.12.2012 (@) oetated

10 459 377 10 459 377
70 369 70 369
201 357 201 357
30 752 30 752
5951 5951

175 081 175 081
66 735 66 735
1504 1504

376 376

11 011 502 - 11 011 502
194 622 194 622
502 654 502 654
1449 314 (29 927) 1419 387
16 026 16 026
5135 5135
422173 422173

1 095 495 1 095 495
13 541 13 541

3 698 960 (29 927) 3 669 033
14 710 462 (29 927) 14 680 535
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent
Share capital

Share premium

Share-based payments reserve

Financial instruments revaluation reserve

Other capital

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Loans, borrowings and debt securities

Trade and other liabilities

Finance lease liabilities

Deferred income due to subsidies and connectic fee

Provisions for deffered tax

Liabilities due to employee benefits

Liabilities due to an equivalent of the right tajae shares free of charge
Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Current liabilities

Loans, borrowings and debt securities

Trade and other liabilities

Finance lease liabilities

Deferred income due to subsidies and connectic fee
Current income tax liabilities

Liabilities due to employee benefits

Liabilities due to an equivalent of the right tajae shares free of charge
Financial liabilities measured at fair value thrbygofit or loss
Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Liabilities related to non-current assets heldsie

Total equity and liabilities

31.12.2012
31.12.2012 (@) e

588 018 588 018
3632 464 3632464
1144 336 1144 336
50 233 50 233

(21 317) (21 317)
5521 833 (24 241) 5 497 592
10 915 567 (24 241) 10 891 326
22721 22721
10 938 288 (24 241) 10 914 047
50 797 50 797
4248 4248

659 627 659 627
243 597 (5 686) 237 911
542 511 542 511
247 724 247 724

1 748 504 (5 686) 1742 818
24043 24043
1290 391 1290 391
3494 3494

92 831 92 831

58 782 58 782
177 407 177 407
306 306

14 14

375 864 375 864
538 538
2023 670 - 2023 670
14 710 462 (29 927) 14 680 535
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and othecomprehensive income

Sales revenue

Excise duty

Net sales revenue

Other operating revenue
Depreciation

Costs of employee benefits

Consumption of materials and supplies and cosgeofls sold
Energy purchase for sale

Transmission services

Other external services

Taxes and charges

Gain/(loss) on sale and liquidation of propertgmland equipment
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Financial expenses

Financial revenue

Impairment loss on goodwill

Dividend income
Share in profits/(losses) of associates measuiiad ube equity method

Profit before tax
Income tax
Net profit for the reporting period

12 month Total elr'zodmgrrltc?ed
. |
pggofzezngjlezd @ (®) adjustments p31.12.2012
T Restated
10290 519 (4 682) (4 682) 10 285 837
(194 487) - (194 487)
10 096 032 (4 682) (4 682) 10 091 350
108 159 - 108 159
(749 737) - (749 737)
(1 009 467) - (1 009 467)
(1 906 931) (2 764) (2 764) (1 909 695)
(4 075 607) (21 658 (21 658) (4 097 265)
(714 451) - (714 451)
(437 100) 2 764 2 764 (434 336)
(224 857) - (224 857)
(8 549) - (8 549)
(5 397) - (5 397)
(225 548) 4682 4682 (220 866)
846 547 (21 658) - (21 658) 824 889
(84 133) - (84 133)
148 646 148 646
(5 921) (5 921)
2724 2724
304 : 304
908 167 (21 658) - (21 658) 886 509
(196 558) 4115 4115 (192 443)
711 609 (17 543) - (17 543) 694 066
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12 month
p;izo';jng?]t(:]e d (a) (b) Total period ended
31.12.2012 adjustments 31.12.2012
T Restated
Other comprehensive income
Items that are or may be reclassified to profibss
- change in fair value of financial assets ala# for sale reclassified to profit or loss (12 243) (12 243)
- change in fair value of financial assets allé for sale 15 626 15 626
- income tax (2 713) (2 713)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit os
- net actuarial gain/(loss) on defined bendéinp (60 888) - (60 888)
- other 7 400 - 7 400
- income tax 11 568 - 11 568
Net other comprehensive income (41 250) - - (41 250)
Total comprehensive income for the reporting period 670 359 (17 543) (17543) 652 816
Including net profit:
attributable to shareholders of the Parent 717 216 (17 543) (17 543) 699 673
attributable to minority interest (5607) - : (5607)
Including comprehensive income:
attributable to shareholders of the Parent 676 083 (17 543) (17 543) 658 540
attributable to minority interest (5724) - . (5724)
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Consolidated statement of cash flow

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the reporting period

Adjustments:
Income tax in the profit or loss

Depreciation

(Gain) / loss on sale and liquidation afgerty, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on property, plant and poment

Impairment loss on goodwill

(Gain)/loss on disposal of financial assets

Interest income
Revenue from dividends
Interest expense

(Gain)/loss on measurement of financiabtss
Share in profits/losses of associates
Exchange (gains) / losses on loans andWworgs

Other financial costs
Other adjustments

Paid income tax
Interest received
Interest paid

Changes in working capital
CQ emission rights
Inventory
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other liabilities

Liabilities due to employee benefits

Deferred income due to subsidies and coiorefges

Liabilities due to an equivalent of the tigh acquire shares free of charge
Fixed assets held for sale and relatedlitiegisi

Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Net cash flows from operating activities

12 month
12 month @) period ended
period ended 31.12.2012
31.12.2012 Restated
711 609 (17 543) 694 066
196 558 (4 115) 192 443
749 737 749 737
8 549 8 549
5397 5397
5921 5921
(35 148) (35 148)
(136 092) (136 092)
(2724) (2724)
19 080 19 080
24 395 24 395
(304) (304)
1787 1787
5756 5 756
(949) (949)
841 963 (4 115) 837 848
(213 373) (213 373)
112 581 112 581
(65 930) (65 930)
48 150 48 150
(12 908) (12 908)
(290 077) 21 658 (268 419)
46 234 46 234
22 850 22 850
(56 074) (56 074)
(202) (202)
7705 7705
89 54¢ 89 549
(144 773 21 658 (123 115)
1242 0717 - 1242 077
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Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Receipts from disposal of property, plant and eapeipt

Acquisition of financial assets

Receipts from disposal of financial assets

Acquisition of subsidiaries and associates adjufstedcquired cash
Receipts from disposal of subsidiaries

Dividends received

Other receipts

Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Loans and borrowings received

Loans and borrowings repaid

Dividend paid to the Parent’s shareholders
Payment of finance lease liabilities

Other adjustments

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
Opening balance of cash

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash

Closing balance of cash

12 month
12 month period ended
period ended @) 31.12.2012
31.12.2012 Restated

(1 789 159) (1789 159)
8 965 8 965

(772 530) (772 530)
1491 436 1491 436
(52 559) (52 559)
1610 1610

2724 2724

484 484

(1109 029) - (1109 029)
3857 3857

(40 828) (40 828)
(211 892) (211 892)

(5 686) (5 686)
(1119) (1119)

(255 668) - (255 668)
(122 620' - (122 620)
1218 361 1218 361
(246) (246)

1 095495 - 1 095 495
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As the result of the adjustment of energy tradeailahce (a), comparative data as at the openingdalaf

the comparative period presented in the consoliddteancial statements derived from the approved
consolidated financial statements for the year én8le December 2012 have been restated in order to
maintain comparability. The restated balances #seabpening balance of the comparative periodemtesl in

the consolidated financial statements are as fallow

31.12.2011 31.12.2011
Restated

Consolidated statement of financial position

Trade and other liabilities 1238 489 1246 758
Retained earnings 5058 001 5051 303
Energy purchase for sale (4 116226) (4 124495)
Deferred tax liability 303 916 302 345
Income tax (195183) (193612)

5. Material estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these consolidated financialestants in accordance with IFRS-EU requires that th
Management Board makes certain estimates and aieusithat affect the adopted accounting policied a
the amounts disclosed in the consolidated finarst@ements and notes thereto. The adopted assmnsaind
estimates are based on the Management Board'skbhestledge of the current and future activities and

events. The actual figures, however, can be diftérem those assumed.

The key areas in which the estimates made by thealjlement Board have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements include:

= employment and post-employment benefitéhe provisions for employee benefits are measusatly
a method which involves determination of the opgniralance of liabilities due to expected future
benefit payments as at the end of the reportingogercalculated in line with actuarial methods;
a change in the discount rate and the long-termgbayge affect the accuracy of the estimate made
(Note 32),

= trade and other receivables allowance their value is determined as the difference betwthe
carrying amount and the present value of estiméuage cash flows, discounted using the original
interest rate; a change in the value of estimattaré cash flows shall cause a change in estimated
allowance on receivables (Note 16),

= unbilled sales revenue at the end of the financiaar— the value of unbilled energy sales is estimated
based on the estimated consumption of electricitthe period from the last meter reading date until
the end of the financial period (Note 16),

= compensation for non-contractual use of land the potential payment of compensation for the so
called non-contractual use of land and rental $eestimated by the technical staff of the Groupetas
on analyses of claims filed on a case-by-case lgdsi® 33 and 50.5),

= provision for land reclamation -ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A., having filled or closed agland ash
dump, is obliged to reclaim the land. As the comyphas large unfilled dumps, land reclamation is
planned for 2060. Future estimated costs of lacthneation were discounted to their current value as
at 31 December 2013, using a discount rate of %ZBlote 33);

= compensation for stranded costxiginating from early termination of LTC concemgi power and

electricity are recognized in the amount of advarae for the given period adjusted by an estimated
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adjustment amount to be calculated by the Presiotite Energy Regulatory Office and depending
upon a number of factors, including in particularfprmance of the generator, sales volume and
average market price of electricity (Note 45);

= recoverable amount of tangible and intangible fiteassets- impairment tests of cash generating
units are based on a number of significant assem@tisome of which are outside the control of the
Group. Significant changes to the assumptions itnftecresults of impairment test and consequently
the financial position and performance of the Gr@upte 8 and 10),

= provision for purchasing CQ@ emissions rights— the assumptions concern the allocation of free
of charge C@emission rights for 2013 (Note 18).

6. Composition of the Group - list of subsidiaries an@ssociates entities

Share of Share of
ENEA S.A. ENEA S.A.
No | Name and address of the Company in the total number | in the total number
of votes of votes
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

ENERGOMIAR Sp. z 0.0.

L Poznai, Strzeszyska 58 100 100
BHU S.A.

2. Poznai, Strzeszijska 58 100 92.62
ENEA Centrum Sp. z o.0.

3. Poznai, Gérecka 1 100 100

4 Hotel ,EDISON Sp._z 0.0. 100 100
Baranowo k/Poznania
Energetyka Pozmaka Zaktad Transportu Sp. z o.0.

5 Poznai, Strzeszjska 58 100 100
Energetyka Pozriaka Przedgbiorstwo Ustug Energetycznych

6. | Energobud Leszno Sp. z o.0. 100 100
Lipno, Gronéwko 30
ENERGO-TOUR Sp. z 0.0.

7 Poznai, Marcinkowskiego 27 99.92 99.92
ENEOS Sp. z o.0.

8. Poznai, Strzeszijska 58 100 100
ENTUR Sp. z 0.0. in liquidation -

9. Szczecin, Malczewskiego 5/7 100 100

10. Centrum Uzdqu|§kqwe ENERGETYK Sp. z o.0. 99.94 99.94
Inowroctaw, Wilkaiskiego 2

1 Elektroyvnie Wodne Sp. z 0.0. . 100*

" | Samocizek, 86-010 Koronowo

Przedsibiorstwo Energetyki Cieplnej Sp. z 0.0. . "

12. Oborniki, Wybudowanie 56 99.89 93.99
JTSERWIS” Sp. z o0.0.

13 Zielona Gora, Zacisze 28 100 100
ENEA Operator Sp. z 0.0.

14. Poznai, Strzeszijska 58 100 100
ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A.

15. Swierze Gérne, Kozienice, Kozienice 1 100 100
Miejska Energetyka Cieplna Pita Sp. z 0.0.

16. 64-920 Pita, Kaczorska 20 65.03* 65.03*
Elektrocieptownia Biatystok S.A. . "

17. Bialystok, Gen. Andersa 3 ) 99.996

18 DOBITT Energia Sp. z 0.0. . 100*

" | Gorzestaw 8, 56-420 Bierutoéw

Annacond Enterprises Sp. z 0.0.

19. Warszawa, Jana lll Sobieskiego % 61 61
Windfarm Polska Sp. z o.0.

20. Koszalin, Wojska Polskiego 24-26 100 100
ENEA Trading Sp. z o.0.

2L. Swierze Gorne, Kozienice, Kozienice 1 100 100
+Ecebe” Sp. z o0.0. " "

22. Augustéw, Wojciech 8 100 99,996

23 Energo-lnwe_st-Broker S.A. 38,46+ 30.3%
Torwi, Jeczmienna 21
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* - an indirect subsidiary held through interestENEA Wytwarzanie S.A.

** - an associate of ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A.

*** _on 27 February 2013 the Extraordinary Shareleos’ Meeting of Entur Sp. z 0.0. with registexstice

in Szczecin adopted the Resolution No. 3 on theodlision of the company after completion of thauildation
proceeding.

*xx . on 31 December 2013 ENEA Wpytwarzanie S.A. med with Elektrownie
Wodne Sp. z 0.0., Dobitt Energia Sp. z 0.0. andktEdeieptownia Bialystok S.A. ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A.
assumed all the rights and obligations of the aegutompanies.

Changes in the Group structure in the period covera by the consolidated financial statements

On 16 July 2013, in the National Court Register @{Rhe company name of “Niepubliczny Zaktad Opieki
Zdrowotnej Centrum Uzdrowiskowe ENERGETYK Sp. z.blas been changed to “Centrum Uzdrowiskowe
ENERGETYK Sp. z 0.0.”

On 9 August 2013 a share purchase agreement d¥o/sB&res in BHU S.A. was signed, between ENEA S.A.
and ENERGA S.A. On 21 September 2013 ownershipafes was transferred to ENEA S.A.

On 17 September 2013 a transformation of ENEA Cemt6.A. into ENEA Centrum Sp. z 0.0. was registered

in the National Court Register.

On 31 December 2013 the Extraordinary Shareholdéegting of ENEOS Sp. z 0.0. adopted a resolution t
increase the share capital by PLN 134 037.5 thaljsanom PLN 32089.5 thousand up to
PLN 166 127 thousand, through the issue of 26818 shares with the value of PLN 500 each. The new
shares in the Company'’s share capital were acqbiyeeNEA S.A. for contribution in kind in the forof an
organised part of the enterprise of ENEA SA ,Gospkd Gwietleniowa”. On 10 February 2014 the
increased share capital of ENEOS Sp. z 0.0. hasfleggistered in the National Court Register.

On 27 August 2013 ENEA Wytwarzanie acquired 75 ahander compulsory purchase in Elektrocieptownia

Bialystok S.A. in the amount of PLN 17 thousand decame the sole shareholder.

On the basis of employee shares in Prabilsistwo Energetyki Cieplnej Sp. z 0.0. purchaseeaqent,
297 shares were purchased on 10 June 2013 andhai&sson 4-5 December 2013 for a total amount of
PLN 786 thousand.

According to the resolution dated 19 December 20%&s resolved to increase the share capital &jd¥a
Energetyka Cieplna Pita Sp. z 0.0. by the amourRldd 6 038 000 through issue of 6 038 new shard¢kdn
value of PLN 1 000 each. All new 6 038 shares veeguired by ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. by contribution i
cash, documented with a notarial deed Rep. A N&1BE®13. The cash was transferred on 23 December
2013.
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On 31 December 2013 the merger of ENEA Wytwarzar8eA. with Elektrownie Wodne
Sp. z 0.0., Dobitt Energia Sp. z 0.0. and Elek&pldwnia Biatystok S.A. was registered. ENEA Wytrarie

S.A. assumed all the rights and obligations ofdtguired companies.

7. Segment reporting

Management of the Company’s activities is condilidig division of operations into segments, which ar
separated based on types of products and senfieesd The Group has four operating segments:

- trade — purchase and sale of electricity;

- distribution — electricity transmission services;

- production — electricity and heat production;

- other activities maintenance and modernization of road lighting jeepgint, hotel services, transport,

construction services, travel services, health sareices
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Segment reporting for the period from 1 Januar§lit®ecember 2013;

Net sales revenue

Inter-segment sales

Total net sales revenue

Total expenses

Segment profit/loss

Depreciation

EBITDA

% of net sales revenue

Unassigned Group costs (general and
administrative expenses)

Operating profit

Financial expenses

Financial revenue

Dividend income

Share in profit/(loss) of associated entities

Income tax

Net profit

Share of non-controlling interests

Trade Distribution Production All other Eliminations Total
segments
3341 849 2832 300 2 767 002 209 369 - 9 150 520
275 205 - 351 460 413 626 (1040 291) -
3617 054 2832 300 3118 462 622 995 (1040 291) 9 150 520
(3 366 344) (2328 555) (2919 058) (562 482) 1012 951 (8 163 488)
250 710 503 745 199 404 60 513 (27 340) 987 032
(508) (376 975) (359 966) (24 749)
251218 880 720 559 370 85 262
6,9% 31,1% 17,9% 13,7%
(90 007)
897 025
(44 821)
88 144
4 552
331
(229 867)
715 364
4)
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Segment reporting for the period from 1 Januarglit®ecember 2012;

Net sales revenue

Inter-segment sales

Total net sales revenue

Total expenses

Segment profit/loss

Depreciation

EBITDA

% of net sales revenue

Unassigned Group costs (general and
administrative expenses)

Operating profit

Financial expenses

Financial revenue

Dividend income

Impairment loss on goodwiill

Share in profit/(loss) of associated entities

Income tax

Net profit

Share of non-controlling interests

Trade Distribution Production All ather Eliminations Total
segments
4 056 365 2811961 2 986 867 236 157 - 10 091 350
209 810 - 275 645 429 539 (914 994) -

4 266 175 2811961 3262512 665 696 (914 994) 10 091 350

(4 045 895) (2396 411) (2960 662) (611 889) 879 630 (9 135 227)

220 280 415 550 301 850 53 807 (35 364) 956 123
(425) (373 328) (346 714) (23 821)
220 705 788 878 648 564 77 628
5,2% 28,1% 19,9% 11,7%

(131 234)

824 889

(84 133)

148 646

2724

(5921)

304

(192 443)

694 066

(5 607)
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Other segment reporting information as at 31 De@r@b13 and for the 12-month period ended as atltita:

Balance as at 31 December 2013

Property, plant and equipment

Trade and other receivables

Total

ASSETS excluded from segmentation

- including property, plant and equipment
- including trade and other receivables
TOTAL: ASSETS

Trade and other liabilities

Equity and liabilities excluded from segmentation
- including trade and other liabilities
TOTAL: EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

for the 12-month period ended 31 December 2013

Capital expenditure for fixed assets and intangisigets

Capital expenditure for fixed assets and intangasieets excluded
from segmentation

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation excluded from segmentation

Recognition/(derecognition/assigning) of receivaldowance

Trade Distribution Production Al other Eliminations Total
segments

18 442 6612 223 5069 013 327 246 (234 181) 11 792 743
635 793 444 513 240 225 188 354 (260 611) 1248 274
654 235 7 056 736 5 309 238 515 600 (494 792) 13 041 017
3 281 007
18 823
101 625
16 322 024
283517 528 093 631 748 131 937 (260 054) 1315 241
15 006 783
92 462
16 322 024
2618 894 888 1260 053 30 157 (23 279) 2 164 437
5815
508 376 975 359 966 24749 (7 795) 754 403
7 356
(28 958) 6 937 (31 899) 334 - (53 586)
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Other segment reporting information as at 31 De@#r@b12 and for the 12-month period ended as atltita:

Balance as at 31 December 2012

Property, plant and equipment

Trade and other receivables

Total

ASSETS excluded from segmentation

- including property, plant and equipment
- including trade and other receivables
TOTAL: ASSETS

Trade and other liabilities

Equity and liabilities excluded from segmentation
- including trade and other liabilities
TOTAL: EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

for the 12-month period ended 31 December 2012

Capital expenditure for fixed assets and intangisigets

Capital expenditure for fixed assets and intangilsigets excluded
from segmentation

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation excluded from segmentation

Recognition/(derecognition/assigning) of receivaldowance

Trade Distribution Production All other Eliminations Total
segments
16 022 6 113 200 4172 988 322721 (194 113) 10 430 818
610 569 417 583 426 555 194 581 (298 132) 1 351 156
626 591 6 530 783 4 599 543 517 302 (492 245) 11781 974
2 898 561
28 559
68 607
14 680 535
383 255 507 290 479 827 132 065 (289 442) 1212995
13 467 540
77 410
14 680 535
323 895 673 901 470 35537 (57 485) 1775518
27 601
425 373328 346 714 23821 (1952) 742 336
7 401
211 5616 (3294) 3410 - 5943
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Segment revenue is generated from sales to exteliaats and transactions with other segments, hvhie
directly attributable to a given segment with a&wvalnt portion of the Group’s revenue that may lesoeably

attributed to a given segment.

In 2013 and 2012 there was no customers’ concémraixceeding 10% of the total sales revenue inany

the segments.

Segment costs include costs of goods sold to esdtadlients and costs of transactions with other upro
segments, which result from operations of a givegntent and may be directly allocated to a givemmsat

with a relevant portion of the Group’s costs thatyrbe reasonably allocated to a given segment.

Market prices are used in inter-segment transagtiahich allow individual units to earn a margirffigient
to carry out independent operations in the marketde in electricity and transmission servicesgaeerned

by prices specified in thenergy Lawof 10 April 1997 and secondary legislation.
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8. Property, plant and equipment

Technical

Fixed assets

Balance as at 1 January 2013
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Impairment loss

Net carrying amount

Changes in the 12 months ended 31 December 201
Reclassifications

Acquisition

Disposal (cost)

Disposal (accumulated depreciation)

Depreciation

Impairment loss

Other (cost)

Other (accumulated depreciation)

Balance as at 31 December 2013

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment loss

Net carrying amount

Land Buildings and equipment and Vehicles Other fixed under Total
structures . assets .
machines construction
45 597 8 337 103 6 008 196 168 005 470 255 1038 894 16 068 050
- (2981 052) (2241 617) (69 898) (297 767) (563) (5590 897)
(103) (11 152) 195 (23) (16) (6 677) (17 776)
45 494 5 344 899 3766774 98 084 172 472 1031 654 10 459 377
3944 601 856 375970 13126 33684 (1085 281) (56 701)
- 10554 9418 3078 2120 2 144 404 2169 574
(23) (21 052) (1 642) (3 806) (1 039) (1 377) (28 939)
- 9 546 1344 3389 1039 - 15318
- (320 352) (377 063) (11 856) (28 868) (27) (738 166)
- (10 685) (195) 21 2 (506) (11 363)
2 (22 217) (52 627) (2 542) (3921) 1851 (79 454)
- 28 124 49 360 1766 2670 - 81920
49 520 8 906 244 6 339 315 177 861 501 099 2098 491 18 072 530
- (3263734) (2567 976) (76 599) (322 926) (590) (6 231 825)
(103) (21 837) - 2) (14) (7 183) (29 139)
49 417 5620 673 3771339 101 260 178 159 2090718 11 811 566
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Technical

Fixed assets

Balance as at 1 January 2012
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Impairment loss

Net carrying amount

Changes in the 12 months ended 31 December 201
Reclassifications

Acquisition

Disposal (cost)

Disposal (accumulated depreciation)

Depreciation

Impairment loss

Acquisition of subsidiaries (cost)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (accumulated depreocigti
Reclassification to assets held for sale (cost)
Reclassification to assets held for sale (accuradlat
depreciation)

Other (cost)

Other (accumulated depreciation)

Balance as at 31 December 2012

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment loss

Net carrying amount

Land BléltI:jL:ggjsr:Snd equipment and Vehicles Otr;esggﬁsed under Total
machines construction

42 607 7 715 962 5 358 520 154 868 429 950 336 238 14 038 145
- (2675 187) (1938 533) (61 355) (273 209) (563) (4 948 847)
(103) (5 755) 185 (23) 17) (6 714) (12 427)
42 504 5 035 020 3420172 93490 156 724 328 961 9 076 871
728 102 652 277 126 266 2948 (391 725) (8 005)
1863 408 739 194 836 15453 39821 1118151 1778 863
(138) (1 858) (1 293) (2 705) (659) - (6 653)

- 262 1016 2313 654 - 4245

- (331 482) (347 979) (11 498) (26 209) - (717 168)

- (5397) 10 - 1 37 (5 349)

- 123 464 223084 - - - 346 548

- (274) (496) - - - (770)

- - 24 61 - 2 87

- 333 8) (30) - - 295

537 (11 856) (44 101) 62 (1 805) (23 772) (80 935)

- 25296 44 383 672 997 - 71348

45 597 8 337 103 6 008 196 168 005 470 255 1038 894 16 068 050
- (2981 052) (2 241 617) (69 898) (297 767) (563) (5590 897)
(103) (11 152) 195 (23) (16) (6 677) (A7 776)
45 494 5 344 899 3766 774 98 084 172 472 1 031 654 10 459 377

Collaterals established on the Group's propergntind equipment are disclosed in Note 17.
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Impairment test (property, plant and equipment)

As at 30 September 2013, due to the falling pradeslectricity, the Group carried out tests for aiment

of tangible fixed assets in entities generatinggye As a result of the analysis the Group did neebgnize
an impairment loss on assets of Production segretite period from 30 September to 31 DecembeB201
market conditions and assumptions made did not gghasignificantly, therefore no impairment loss
of Production segment assets was recognized ie twssolidated financial statements.

The main assumptions used for impairment testasfellows:

— energy prices for years 2013-2035,

—  prices of certificates of energy origin from renéaresources and cogeneration,

—  prices of CQ emission rights,

Dobitt Energia Windfarm Polska Elektrocieptownia Elektrownie ENEA
Sp. z o.0. Sp. z o.0. Bialystok S.A. Wodne Sp. z 0.0. Wytwarzanie S.A.
Discount rates pre-tax 9.0% 10,9% 9.2% 8.8% 7,5%
Residual discount rates 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

Periods of projection for the companies:

» ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. —till 2035,

» Elektrocieptownia Bialystok S.A. — till 2017,

» Dobitt Energia Sp. z 0.0. and Windfarm Polska Sp.oz — till 2033,
e Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z 0.0. — till 2033.

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed, prigiesnergy, certificates of origin and €@mission rights

and discount rates are the key factors having gadton the estimated value in use of cash gengratiits.

Finance lease

The Group uses the following property, plant andigapent under finance lease:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Initial Accumulated Ne.t Initial Accumulated Ne_t
o carrying o carrying
value depreciation value depreciation
amount amount
Technical equipment
and machines 1029 (308) 721 1029 (135) 894
Vehicles 10 096 (3 755) 6341 11515 (3 459) 8 056
Other fixed assets 1 656 (346) 1310 1 656 (181) 1475
Total 12781 (4 409) 8372 14 200 (3775) 10425

The Group does not enter into finance lease agnetsnas a financing party.
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9. Perpetual usufruct of land

Cost opening balance
Acquisition

Disposal (cost)
Liguidation (cost)
Cost closing balance

Opening balance of amortization
Disposal (accumulated amortization)
Liguidation (accumulated amortization)
Amortization for the period

Closing balance of amortization
Opening balance of impairment loss
Closing balance of impairment loss
Net carrying amount opening balance
Net carrying amount closing balance

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
73 666 72 167
714 2 707

(3 050) (1 200)
- (8)

71 330 73 666
(3 233) (2 607)
(614) (365)

- 47

(216) (308)
(2 835) (3 233)
(64) (64)
(64) (64)
70 369 69 496
68 431 70 369
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10. Intangible assets

Computer
software, Certificates Agreements
2012 exRpgéEses Goodwill Iicense_s, E?iziﬂ;ent (;:Iztt?;]gr exchange ogn supply Total

concessions agreements of coal

and patents
Balance as at 1 January 2013
Cost 3375 149909 203 902 6 137 16 000 3900 3520 386743
Accumulated amortization (239) - (155 210) (378) (1120) (1517) (3520) (161 984)
Impairment loss - (23184 (218) - - - (23 402)
Net carrying amount 3136 126725 48 474 5759 14 880 2 383 - 201 357
Changes in 12 months ended 31 December 2013
Reclassifications - - 20514 6 056 - - - 26 570
Acquisition - - 665 13 - - - 678
Disposal (cost) - - (7 560) - - - - (7 560)
Disposal (accumulated amortization) - - 7 520 - - - - 7 520
Amortization (93) - (21 391) (280) (3 840) (2 383) - (27 987)
Other (cost) - - 2624 - - - (3520) (896)
Other (accumulated amortization) - - 3378 - - - 3520 6 898
Balance as at 31 December 2013
Cost 3375 149909 220 145 12 206 16 000 3900 - 405 535
Accumulated amortization (332) - (165 703) (658) (4 960) (3 900) - (175 553)
Impairment loss - (23 184) (218) - - - - (23 402)
Net carrying amount 3043 126725 54 224 11548 11 040 - - 206 580
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2012

Balance as at 1 January 2012
Cost

Accumulated amortization
Impairment loss

Net carrying amount

Changes in 12 months ended 31 December 2012

Reclassifications

Acquisition

Disposal (cost)

Disposal (accumulated amortization)
Amortization

Impairment loss

Acquisition of subsidiaries (cost)
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(accumulated amortization)
Reclassification to assets held for sale (cost)
Reclassification to assets held for sale
(accumulated amortization)

Other (cost)

Other (accumulated amortization)

Balance as at 31 December 2012
Cost

Accumulated amortization
Impairment loss

Net carrying amount

No collateral has been established on

Computer
R&D software, Easement Customer Certificates Agreements
Goodwill licenses, ; - exchange  on supply Total
expenses concessions rights relations agreements of coal
and patents
294 47 474 182 456 - 16 000 3900 3520 253 644
(221) - (127 473) - (1 120) (1517) (3520) (133851)
- (17 263) (218) - - - (17 481)
73 30211 54 765 - 14 880 2383 - 102 312
- - 4 601 - - - - 4 601
3081 - 17 391 1 866 - - - 22 338
- - (455) - - - - (455)
- - 455 - - - - 455
(16) - (28 294) (126) - - - (28436)
- (5921) - - - - - (5921)
- 102435 - 4271 - - - 106 706
- - - (252) - - - (252)
- - 8 - - - - 8
- - (11) - - - - (11)
- - (99) - - - - (99)
(2) - 113 - - - - 111
3375 149909 203 902 6 137 16 000 3900 3520 386743
(239) - (155 210) (378) (1 120) (1517) (3520) (161 984)
- (23184 (218) - - - - (23402)
3136 126 725 48 474 5759 14 880 2383 - 201 357

intangitdetas
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10.1.Goodwill
Goodwill has been presented in detail in the talelew:
Period Period
ended ended
31.12.2013  31.12.2012
Goodwill
Opening balance 149 909 47 474
Additional amounts recognized following businesmbmations effected during the year - 102 435
Closing balance 149 909 149 909

Accumulated impairment loss

Opening balance (23 184) (17 263)
Impairment loss recognized during the year - (5921)
Closing balance (23 184) (23 184)
Net carrying amount

Opening balance 126 725 30211
Closing balance 126 725 126 725

Goodwill by cash generating units has been predeantthe table below:

Net carrying

Goodwill amount
Windfarm Polska Sp. z o.0. 102 435
Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z 0.0. (wind power plants) 18 686
Dobitt Energia Sp. z 0.0. 3131
Miejska Energetyka Cieplna Pita Sp. z 0.0. 1 806
Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z o.0. 667
126 725

As at 30 September 2013 the Group carried out grimment test on goodwill. The test covered gooldwil
related to two companies acquired in 2011: ElekhiewViatrowe — ENEA Centrum Spoétka Akcyjna Spoétka
Komandytowa (on 2 January 2012 a merger of thepemmy with Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z 0.0. took place),
Dobitt Energia Sp. z 0.0. and Annacond Enterpri3esz 0.0. and a company acquired in 2012: Windfarm
Polska Sp. z 0.0. As a result of the analysisGheup did not recognize an impairment loss on galhdw
In the period from 30 September to 31 December 28a8et conditions and assumptions made did not

change significantly, therefore no impairment lass recognized in these consolidated financiaéstants.

The most significant assumptions adopted by the 2oy for impairment testing are presented below:

a) energy prices for years 2013-2035,

b) prices of certificates of energy origin from rené&aresources and cogeneration,

c) prices of CQ emission rights,

d) support period for certificates of origin — assurfiadthe whole projection period,

e) Elektrownie Wiatrowe — ENEA Centrum Spétka Akcyjndp. k. (merged with Elektrownie
Wodne Sp. z 0.0. — now ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A.): fae-discount rate 11.7%, residual growth rate

2.5%; projection period was extended till 2033ime Iwith the economic useful lives of assets,
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f)  Dobitt Energia Sp. z 0.0. (now ENEA Wytwarzanie $.fre-tax discount rate 9.2%, residual growth
rate 2.5%; projection period was extended till 208Bne with the economic useful lives of assets,
g) Windfarm Sp. z 0.0.: pre-tax discount rate 10.9%sidual growth rate 2.5%; projection period was

extended till 2033 in line with the economic usdifuts of assets,

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed, prigesnergy, certificates of origin and g@mission rights

and discount rates are the key factors having gadton the estimated value in use of cash gengratiits.

As at 31 December 2012 the Group carried out araimpent test on goodwill. The test covered goodwill
related to two companies acquired in 2008: Przbdsistwo Energetyki Cieplnej Sp. z 0.0. in Oborniki
(,PEC Oborniki") and Miejska Energetyka CieplnaaP#$p. z o.0. (,MEC Pita”); three companies acquired
in 2011: Elektrownie Wiatrowe — ENEA Centrum Spoiecyjna Spotka Komandytowa (on 2 January 2012
a merger of the company with Elektrownie Wodne Bm.o. took place), Dobitt Energia Sp. z 0.0. and
Annacond Enterprises Sp. z 0.0. and a company @i 2012: Windfarm Polska Sp. z 0.0. As a resfilt
the analysis the Group recognized an impairmerst dmsgoodwill related to Annacond Enterprises Sp.oz

in the amount of PLN 5 921 thousand (impairmertheftotal goodwill amount related to this entity).

11. Investment property

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Cost opening balance 34 356 35220
Acquisition - 587
Reclassification from / to property, plant and g@quént 1809 (1451)
Cost closing balance 36 16¢ 34 356
Opening balance of depreciation (1 585) (982)
Disposal (accumulated depreciation) 56 -
Liguidation (accumulated depreciation) (136) 156
Depreciation for the period (880) (759)
Closing balance of depreciation (2 545) (1585)
Opening balance of impairment loss (2 019) (2 019)
Closing balance of impairment loss (2 979) (2 019)
Net carrying amount opening balance 30 752 32219
Net carrying amount closing balance 30 641 30 752

No collateral has been established on investmenuguty.

01.01.2013-31.12.2013 01.01.2012-31.12.2012
Revenue from investment property 2 906 2 494

Operating costs related to investment property:

generaténg revenue (1 335) (1 :(350))
not use - 74
Total expenses (1 335) (1424)

The Group recognizes as investment properties aratmegs office buildings, a hotel in Augustow arities

commercial properties.
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The most valuable investment property is the forheadquarter of ENEA S.A. As at 31 December 2043 it
book value amounted to PLN 10 096 thousand arfdiitsalue is estimated at PLN 18 162 thousand.

12. Investments in subsidiaries and associates

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Opening balance 5951 278 854
Share in the net change of net assets 331 304
Reclassification to non-current assets held fa sal (3 000) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries - (272 310)
Other changes 16 (897)
3298 5951

Closing balance

The share in the net profit/loss of associatestiesticonsolidated at equity for 2013 amounted to

PLN 331 thousand (PLN 304 thousand for 2012).
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The following table presents the key financial dagarding associates consolidated at equity.

31.12.2013
Energo-Inwest-Broker S.A.

(an associate)

31.12.2012
Energo-Inwest-Broker S.A.

(an associate)

Short-term Long-term
Share Non- liabilities and liabilities and
in the Current current Total provisions for provisions for Total Net
ownership  assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities Revenue Expenses profit
38.46% 5491 6 823 12314 3 059 692 3751 31393 (27442) 3951
5491 6 823 12314 3 059 692 3751 31393 (27442) 3951
Short-term Long-term
Share Non- liabilities and liabilities and
in the Current current Total provisions for provisions for Total Net
ownership  assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities Revenue Expenses profit
30.3% 6 940 6 888 13 828 3 405 734 4139 31607 (25965) 5642
6 940 6 888 13 828 3 405 734 4139 31607 (25965) 5642
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13. Non-controlling interests

2013

Subsidiary name

Non-controlling interests (%)
Non-current assets

Current assets

Long-term liabilities
Short-term liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of non-controlling
interests

Sales revenue

Net profit/ (loss) for the reporting
period

Total comprehensive income

Profit / (Loss) attributable to
non-controlling interests

Net cash flow from operating activitie

Net cash flow from investing activitie

Net cash flow from financing activitie
— before dividend payment for non-
controlling interests

Net cash flow from financing activitie
—dividend payment for non-controllin
interests

Net cash flows

Miejska Total
Energo- Centrum Energetyka Przedsgbiorstwo Annacond non-controllin
BHU Tour Uzdrowiskowe Cieplna Pita  Energetyki Cieplnej  Enterprises i-nterestsl 9
S.A. Sp. z0.0. Energetyk Sp.zo.c  Sp.zo.0. Sp. z 0.0. in Oborniki ~ Sp. z 0.0.

- 0.08% 0.06% 34.97% 0.11% 39.00%
- 6 338 23 317 46 167 10081 1440
- 1136 690 33078 4928 299
- (819) (6 595) (9 174) (3 285) (683)
- (514) (3083) (16 065) (1923) (5)
- 6141 14 329 54 006 9 801 1051

- 5 9 18 886 11 410 19 321
133 259 7793 9979 40 034 8264 58
(5599) (393) (746) 2 052 359 (1 429)
(5599) (393) (746) 2 052 359 (1.429)

(192) - - 774 - (586) (4)
2 053 (283) 887 20 891 597 (708)
(60) (36) (383) (7 985) (3 890) -
1332 - (356) 2 036 2164 400
3325 (319) 148 14 942 (1129) (308)
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2012

Subsidiary name

Miejska

Non-controlling interests (%)
Non-current assets

Current assets

Long-term liabilities
Short-term liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of non-controlling
interests

Sales revenue

Net profit/ (loss) for the reporting
period

Total comprehensive income

Profit / (Loss) attributable to
non-controlling interests

Net cash flow from operating activitie

Net cash flow from investing activitie

Net cash flow from financing activitie
— before dividend payment for non-
controlling interests

Net cash flow from financing activitie
—dividend payment for non-controllin:
interests

Net cash floks

Energo- Centrum Energetyka Przedsgbiorstwo Annacond non-cToor;[?rlollin
BHU Tour Uzdrowiskowe Cieplna Pita  Energetyki Cieplnej  Enterprises Elektrocieptownia interests 9
S.A. Sp. z0.0. Energetyk Sp.zo.c Sp. zo.0. Sp. z 0.0. in Oborniki ~ Sp. z 0.0. Biatystok S.A.
9.92% 0.08% 0.06% 34.97% 6.01% 39.00% 0.004%
18 604 6 591 23451 42 312 6711 2837 685 753
49 490 1353 682 24 640 4973 420 172 555
(6 182) (936) (6 917) (8 015) (494) (683) (171 895)
(33 654) (474) (2141) (6 611) (1991) (22) (105 590)
28 258 6 534 15075 52 326 9199 2552 580 823
2 803 5 9 18 298 553 995 58 22721
144 019 5141 10 768 39 467 7 962 35 268 181
(4 090) (889) 62 (1 851) (33) (11 939) (9 802)
(4 090) (889) 62 (1 .851) (33) (11 939) (11 173)
(302) - - (647) 2 (4 656) - (5 607)
1140 (352) 1026 10 206 2242 319 115 510
(150) (28) (728) (2735) (1 869) - (155 243)
(1115) - (1 043) (218) 1028 - 79 845
(8) - - - - - -
(133) (380) (745) 7 253 1401 319 40112
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14. Non-current assets held for sale

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Tangible fixed assets 12 328 12 328
Perpetual usefruct of land 1122 1122
Inventory 8 9
Receivables 22 77
Cash 7 5

13 487 13 541
Impairment loss on non-current assets held for sale - -
Non-current assets held for sale 13 487 13541
Loans, borrowings and debt securities 123 291
Trade and other liabilities 76 178
Liabilities due to employee benefits 71 69
Liabilities related to non-current assets held forsale 270 538

As at 31 December 2013 the assets of a subsidiatgl FEDISON” Sp. z 0.0. are presented as non-ciuirre
assets held for sale and its liabilities as litibi related to non-current assets held for sadeatthe end of
the reporting period the carrying amount of thessets amounted to PLN 13,487 thousand and thditlietbi
amounted to PLN 270 thousand.

On 15 March 2013 the announcement of the saleaehtiel was published in Gazeta Wyborcza, however
there was no offer submitted. The Memorandum wasested by two companies. On 24 April 2013 another
announcement was published in Gazeta Wyborcza. dRespto the Company’s public invitation to
negotiations on the acquisition of a block of sbamas received from two entities. On 14 June 20iR]ing
offers were obtained from them. At the same tinme of the entities involved in the proceedings gted
exclusive right to negotiate.

As a result of the sales process of Hotel "Edisgm"z 0.0., on 12 August 2013, a share sale agraevhis
shares was concluded (with the entity, previousinted the exclusive right to negotiate). The agition of
100% in Hotel "Edison" Sp. z 0.0. by the inves®isubject to a receipt from a bank a promise afaa o
purchase of shares and the issuance of zoning taeamglifor land on which Hotel Edison is located thg
Tarnowo Podgérne Municipal Office. The Parties adreo finalize the above conditions no later than
31 December 2013. As the above mentioned conditi@re not met till this date, on 31 December 2018 t
agreement was terminated.

On 23 January 2014 the another announcement aftbeof the hotel was published in Gazeta Wyborcaa
invitation to negotiation of purchase of the paekad all shares in Hotel Edison Sp. z 0.0. The Me&mdum
was requested by four entities. Three of them stibchpreliminary offer within the prescribed peridthe

final selection of the Investor and the sale canttimplanned for the end of the first quarter @12.
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15. Financial assets

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Receivables and loans 3933 376
Long-term financial assets available for sale (gham unrelated parties) 61761 66 735
Non-current financial assets measured at fair vidtaugh profit or loss 1 860 1504
Total non-current financial assets 67 554 68 615
Receivables and loans 1282812 1296 569
Current financial assets held to maturity 45 5135
Current financial assets measured at fair valuautin profit or loss 296 339 422 173
Total current financial assets 1579 196 1723877
Total 1646 750 1792 492
16. Trade and other receivables
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Current trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 1015 548 1080 321
Tax receivables (excluding income tax) and othmilar charges 55 838 120 286
Other receivables 133 399 137 537
Advance payments 7 316 2532
Receivables due to unbilled sales 251223 249 508
Prepaid property insurance 3230 3377
1 466 554 1593 561
Less: impairment loss on receivables (120 588) (174 174)
Net current trade and other receivables 1 345 966 1449 387
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Non-current trade and other receivables
Other receivables 3933 376
Net non-current trade and other receivables 3933 376
Total net trade and other receivables 1 349 899 1419 763
Trade and other receivables allowance:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Opening balance of receivables allowance 174 174 168 231
Addition 28 031 28 804
Release (41 143) (21 914)
Utilization (40 474) (947)
Closing balance of receivables allowance 120 588 174 174
Ageing structure of trade and other receivables:
Nominal value Allowance Carrying amount
31.12.2013
Current 1050 273 (386) 1049 887
Overdue
0-30 days 148 537 (27) 148 510
31- 90 days 51 359 (993) 50 366
91-180 days 18 565 (2 417) 16 148
over 180 days 201 753 (116 765) 84 988
TOTAL 1470 487 (120 588) 1349 899
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31.12.2012
Current
Overdue

0-30 days

31- 90 days
91-180 days
over 180 days
TOTAL

Nominal value Allowance Carrying amount
1031 386 (405) 1030981

189 789 (3957) 185 832

94 708 (97) 94 611
33229 (7 173) 26 056

244 825 (162 542) 82 283
1 593 937 (174 174) 1419 763

17. Encumbrances and collaterals established on the Gup’s assets

Property, plant and equipment with limited ownepstii the Group and classified as collateral ofiliags

Entity for
- ) which the Debt as at 31 Debt as at 31 .
Entity’s name Collateral titte | Type of collateral 4 December | Collateral period
collateral has | December 2013
h 2012
been establisheq

Capped mortgage
BHU S.A. Investment loan| up to PLN 3,750 | Bank BPH S.A. 2000 -

thousand
Centrum Capped mortgage
Uzdrowiskowe up to PLN 8,450 | Siemens Finance
ENERGETYK Loan thousand, registeredSp. z o.0. 5413 5821 September 2020
Sp. z 0.0. pledge
EP PUE Mortgage of PLN Nordea Bank
ENERGOBUD Investment loan | 4,000 thousand 778 1137 February 2016

Polska S.A.
Leszno Sp. z 0.0.
" Capped mortgage
gotezl BE(?ISON Overdraft up to PLN 400 BZ WBK S.A. 123 291 October 2014
P-z0. thousand
glek;rgv(v)nlf Wodneg Mortgage, Capped
CLFl)rlrentI.y .ENEA Investment loan | mortgage, PKO BP S.A. 19 000 21670 August 2020
Wytwarzanie S.A. registered pledge
. Capped mortgage, | BZ WBK

PEC S.p.‘ £0.0..In Leasing assignment of Finanse & 42 98 November 2014
Oborniki : .

receivables Leasing S.A.

Registered pledge

on fixed assets, 16

blank bills of

.| exchange, Nordic
\EVNyE/:/:\ rzanie S.A If‘; Crilligt—term credit authorization to thel Investment 15 666 31031 December 201%
o y bank account, Bank S.A.

assignment of

insurance policy

title
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Other collateral, including related to credit fé@ks and loans presented in the preceding table.

Entity for which the collateral has

Debt as at

Debt as at

No | Entity’s name | Collateral title Type of collateral been established 31 December 2014 31 December 2012 Collateral period
Claims arising from
Eneraobud the contract on
1. Leszgo purchase of productsBlank promissory note PKN Orlen S.A. 38 44 unlimited
and services secured
with Fleet Cards
Energobud . )
2. Leszno Collateral of leases | Blank promissory note Pekao Leasing Sp. z 0.0. 1160 1859 October 2015
Eneraobud Collateral of a
3. 9 contract for tender | Blank promissory note PZU S.A. 1261 2248 21 July 2016
Leszno
bonds
Service contract
Energobud regarding regular . )
4. Leszno provision of Blank promissory note Warta S.A. 11 30 October 2014
performance bonds
Energobud . . .
5. Leszno Investment loan Blank promissory note TUIR Allianz Polska S.A. 4 686 276 20 August 2014
Energobud Blank promissory note, assignment of receivables fr
6. Leszno Loan power sales contract NORDEA BANK POLSKA S.A. 778 1137 28 February 2016
Elektrownie
Wodne -
7. EL;\;rEe:tly Investment loan Blank promissory note, assignméatapntract NFOSIGW 5789 6 365| 20 December 2023
Wytwarzanie
S.A.
8. | Eneos Loan Assignment of a contract and blank promissarg PKO BP S.A. 1562 2294| 20 December 2020
Centrum
9. | Uzdrowiskowe Ct?rlﬁ]tsg Ici)r;i Blank promissory note Siemens Finance Sp. z 0.0. 5413 5821| 30 September 2020
ENERGETYK |P
10. | BHU Collateral of lease Blank promissory note Philips nggt;)ngz I;aéel Mazury 284 400 Contract term
Collateral of .
11.| BHU receivables Assets under lease agreement M Leasing sp. z 0.0. 618 1451 21 January 2017
Space rental I1zba Rozliczeniowa Gield
12.| ENEA agreement Bank guarantee Towarowych S.A. 4000 30 000| 18 November 2014
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No

Entity’s name

Collateral title

Type of collateral

Entity for which the collateral has
been established

Debt as at
31 December 201

Debt as at
31 December 2012

Collateral period

ENEA

13. Insurance guarante¢  Bank guarantee Gorecka Projekt Sp. z 0.0. 1600 - 31 December 2014
14.| ENEA Insurance guarante¢  Bank guarantee Atrium Tower Sp. z 0.0. 186 ) 31 August 2015
15. | ENEA Insurance guarante¢  Bank guarantee International Chamber of Commerce 633 - 13 October 2014
16. | Energomiar Lease agreement Blank promissory Volkswagen Leasing Polska Sp. z 0.9. 255 500 November 2014
17.| ITSERWIS Lease agreement Blank promissory notes BZ WBK Leasing S.A. 9 52 20 March 2014
18. ENEA Overdraft BZ WBK S.A. - - 10 August 2014
Operator
19. | ENEA Trading | Overdraft Bank Pekao S.A. - - 26 August 2014
20. | PEC Oborniki | Loan Blank promissory note and assigbnment contract WFOSIiGW 3 150 1 000 30 June 2016
21. | MEC Pita Grant Blank promissory note and assigbnment cantrac WEFOSIGW 4141 2106 20 August 2018
Elektrocieptow Blank promissory note
nia Biatystok -
22. E‘,’\;EX“V Loan NFOSIGW 9928 -| 30 September 2018
Wytwarzanie
S.A.
Dobitt - Blank promissory note
currently
23.| ENEA Loan Raiffeisen-Leasing Polska S.A. 93 - 30 June 2016
Wytwarzanie
S.A.
24 ENEA Grant Blank promissory note NFOSIGW - - 30 November 2016
" | Wytwarzanie P Y
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18. CO, emission rights

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Opening balance
Gross book value 194 622 246 722
Net carrying amount 194 622 246 722
Changes within 12 month period
Acquisition 86 212 120 976
Redemption of emission rights (90 268) (140 667)
Sales - (32 409)
Closing balance
Gross book value 190 566 194 622
Net carrying amount 190 566 194 622

The Group is obliged to settle G@®missions for 2013 through submission of a spatifjuantity of emission
allowances for redemption until the end of April120 Directive EU-ETS (Directive 2003/87/EC of the
European Parliament and the Council, as amendedilgctive 2009/29/EC) contains stipulations for
derogation from the obligation to buy allowancesotiygh an auction as of 2013, and allocation ofatert
amount of free of charge emission allowances balhneith execution of specific investment projects
presented in the National Investment Plan ("NIP").

According to the published list of free emissioloabince allocation during 2013-2020 for energy picdg
installations, the Kozienice Power Plant and thehBitok Heat & Power Generating Plant are entitied
receive a certain amount of free of charge, @@ission allowances. Receipt of free of chargewalhces
depends inter alia on achievement of investmentsgo@sented in the National Investment Plan ("NIP"
The NIP also envisages options for balancing allmeaallocations through investment realized by mothe
group companies. In the case of the allowance lier Kozienice Power Plant, free emission allowance
allocations will be balanced with energy grids esien and modernisation projects executed by ENEA
Operator Sp. z 0.0. Under the derogation regulatidghe companies pursuing the investment projects
enumerated in the NIP, namely ENEA Wytwarzanie SEektrocieptownia Biatystok S.A. (presently ENEA
Wytwarzanie S.A.) and ENEA Operator Sp. z o.0.fulilling the requirements of the Directive, filed
investment progress reports in December 2013. hualy 2014, the European Commission approved the
Polish plan of assigning 405 million G@®mission allowances to modernisation of the aleemergy sector as
consistent with EU legislation on State aid. Desgiarly mentioned reduction of the volume of alloess
across the European Union, the approved quantignogsion allowances conforms to the quantity priese

by the Polish government in the corrected applcagubmitted to the Commission. Based on the fonggo
on 31 January 2014 the Ministry of the Environnfdat an application with a list of notified NIPvastment
projects according to actual investment outlaysnduthe period ended 30 June 2013. The applicatiati be
subject to approval by the Commission, and a natioegulation is necessary to assign the allowatces
specific parties (a draft Regulation was publishedFebruary 2014). As soon as the Regulation is
promulgated, emission allowances can be recordethenKOBIZE registry of allowances and can be
redeemed.

Therefore, as at 31 December 2013 the Group didewmtgnize a provision for purchasing additional ,CO

emission allowances.
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19. Inventory
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Materials 290 418 311 892
Semi-finished products and work in progress 591 1502
Finished products 420 605
Certificates of origin 223916 191 624
Goods for resale 11 032 14 405
526 377 520 028
Impairment loss on inventories (4879) (17 374)
Total 521 498 502 654

Inventories included in the expenses of currentryeanounted to PLN 1747 463 thousand
(PLN 1 901 678 thousand in 2012).
A portion of impairment losses for inventories Haeen reversed due to the sale of impaired goods and

materials, liquidation of materials and an increasgales prices on the market.

No collateral has been established on inventories.

20. Certificates of origin

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Opening balance 180 521 144 012
Self-production 182 328 222 060
Acquisition 199 585 283574
Redemption (324 128) (420 491)
Sale - (37 531)
Impairment loss 1596 (11 103)
Other changes 619 -
Closing balance 240 521 180 521
21. Cash and cash equivalents
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Cash in hand and at bank 990 112 506 679
- cash in hand 532 905
- cash at bank 989 580 505 774
Other cash 583 083 588 816
-cash in transit 37 1053
- deposits 582 938 587 669
- other 108 94
Total cash and cash equivalents 1573 195 1095 495
Cash disclosed in the cash flows statement 1573 195 1 095 495

Collaterals established on cash has been discindéote 17.

As at 31 December 2013 the total restricted cagheofsroup amounted to PLN 124 311 (as at 31 Dbeem
2012 the total restricted cash amounted to PLN 3B thbusand). The total restricted cash of the Group
comprised transaction deposits related to tradmgnergy and COemission rights and funds blocked as

collateral agreements.
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22. Financial assets measured at fair value through pffi or loss

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Financial assets measured at fair value through pffi or loss

Other financial assets 1860 1504
Investment portfolio 296 339 422 173
Total 298 199 423 677

ENEA S.A. has an investments portfolio managed bgpeacialized institution dealing with professional

management of cash.

As at 31 December 2013 the investments portfolioyagay amount is equal to PLN 328 603 thousand,
included financial assets measured at fair valueugih profit or loss- treasury bills and bonds of

PLN 296 331 thousand and bank deposits of PLN&R thousand, presented in cash and equivalents. Th

Company also held shares of Pioneer Investment,Ffuedented as non-current assets.

23. Equity

Balance as at 31 December 2013

Nominal value

Number h Share

. of shares per share capital
Series of shares (in PLN)
“A” series 295 987 473 1 295 988
“B” series 41 638 955 1 41639
“C” series 103 816 15C 1 103 816
Total number of shares 441 442 57¢
Total share capital 441 443
Share capital (face value) 441 443
Capital from business combination 38810
Hyperinflation adjustment of share capital 107 765
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 588 018
Share premium 3632 464
Share-based payments reserve 1 144 336
Retained earnings 6 079 288
Financial instruments revaluation reserve 45 185
Other capital (20 664)
Non-controlling interests 19 321
TOTAL EQUITY 11 487 948
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Balance as at 31 December 2012

Nominal value

Number per share Share
Series of shares of shares (in PLN) capital
“A” series 295 987 473 1 295 988
“B” series 41 638 955 1 41 639
“C” series 103 816 15C 1 103 816
Total number of shares 441 442 578
Total share capital 441 443
Share capital (face value) 441 443
Capital from business combination 38810
Hyperinflation adjustment of share capital 107 765
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 588 018
Share premium 3632 464
Share-based payments reserve 1 144 336
Retained earnings 5497 592
Financial instruments revaluation reserve 50 233
Other capital (21 317)
Non-controlling interests 22721
TOTAL EQUITY 10 914 047
24. Trade and other liabilities
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Current trade and other liabilities
Trade liabilities 745 498 578 792
Advance payments received for deliveries, works setgices 61 881 38779
Tax and similar liabilities (excluding income tax) 186 265 178 782
Dividend liabilities 23 34
Special funds 574 569
Liabilities due to options for purchase sharesuipsadiaries - 23 842
Other 413 462 469 593
Total 1407 703 1290 391
25. Loans, borrowings and debt securities
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Long-term
Bank loans 794 773 38342
Borrowings 25 136 12 455
819 909 50 797
Short-term
Bank loans 19 363 21 206
Borrowings 3285 2 837
22 648 24 043
Total 842 557 74 840

Loans and borrowings agreements of the entitiélsdrENEA Group have been presented below:

ENEA S.A. -. bank agreements dated 18 October 2012 andiri® 2013 with European Investment Bank.
Floating interest rate based on WIBOR 6M plus mrargie facility is repaid in installments paid eyaix
month from June 2017 till June 2028. As at 31 Ddmm2013 under the agreements with European
Investment Bank for a total value of PLN 1.425ibill ENEA S.A. received funds in the amount of
PLN 780 million.
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ENEA Operator Sp. z 0.0.- pursuant to the agreement dated 18 July 201k BZnWBK S. A. granted an
overdraft facility of PLN 150 000 thousand to fim@ncurrent operations of the Company. The faaitigtures
on 10 August 2014. The interest rate is floatingdobhon WIBOR 1M plus margin. As at 31 December 2013

the Company did not use the loan.

ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. - investment loan in a foreign currency granted\lmydic Investment Bank. The
loan granted on 20 December 2000. The final matdidte is 26 November 2014. The facility was avhite
two currencies — EUR and USD. Interest rate forftudlity denominated in USD - rate quoted on Tater
page 3750 at 11.00 a.m. London time for the peeigdivalent or similar to that of the loan interpstiod

(6 months) plus margin. Interest rate for the facllenominated in EUR (EUR-EURIBOR-Telerate) - EUR
rate quoted on Telerate page 248 at 11.00 a.mssBlsitime for the period equivalent or similathat of the
loan interest period (6 months) plus margin. Thalifg is repaid in installments paid every six ntlosi— on

26 May and 26 November. The total liability as afl Pecember 2013 (principal amount)
PLN 15 653 thousand, including USD denominatedipordf PLN 1 656 thousand (USD 550 thousand) and
EUR denominated portion of PLN 13 997 thousand (B85 thousand).

26. Bonds

On 21 June 2012 ENEA S.A. execui@drogramme Agreement with five banks acting aseiggiarantors.
The Agreement relates to Bonds Issue Programme upet amount of PLN 4 bin (the “ProgrammThe
Agreement was concluded for the term of 10 yeas finishes on 15 June 2022.

The Programme will finance current operations andestment needs of the ENEA S.A. and its key
subsidiaries.

On 31 December 2013 and till the date of thesedlmaed financial statements, ENEA S.A. has nstiésl
any bonds under the above Bonds Issue Programne.Cbhmpany plans bond issue, in the frame of

Agreement Programme, for first quarter of 2014.

27. Deferred income due to subsidies and connection fee

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Long-term
Deferred income due to subsidies 164 345 172 501
Deferred income due to connection fees 466 066 487 126
630411 659 627
Short-term
Deferred income due to subsidies 14 536 17 413
Deferred income due to connection fees 56 862 75 418
71 398 92 831
Deferred income schedule
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Up to 1 year 71 398 92 831
1to 5 years 131 862 133 312
Over 5 years 498 549 526 315
701 809 752 458
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28. Financial instruments

28.1. Principles of financial risk management

The Group is exposed to the following categoriessif related to financial instruments:
= credit risk;
= liquidity risk;
= commodity risk;
= currency risk;
= interest rate risk.
This note presents information on the Group’s eyp®$o each of the aforementioned risks as wetthasisk

and capital management objectives, policy and phoess.

Development of the general guidelines and ruleghef risk management policy is the responsibility of
the Management Board of the Parent.

Risk is managed on an ongoing basis. Risks areyzadhlin connection with the impact of the external
environment as well as changes in the structureaatidity of the Group. Taking these into considiems
appropriate steps are undertaken aimed at mitigafioche risk or its transfer beyond the Groupotder to do
so, the Group ensures that its employees are afgressible occurrence of risks and their influenocethe
activity of individual organizational units.

Aware of the risks relating to its business adegit ENEA S.A. continues actions aimed at develapmé

an integrated, formalized risk management systerarang credit, liquidity, market, currency and irgst rate
risks. In 2013 the Management Board of ENEA S.Aopdd Liquidity Risk Management Policy, Currency
Risk and Interest Rate Risk Management Policy. Agsent, complete documentation of aforementioned
policies is being implemented and as well actigitiegulating the Commodity Risk Management Poliey a

finalized.

28.2. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial losses whiclayrbe incurred if a customer or a contractor beimarty to

a financial instrument fails to meet its contrataligations.

Credit risk is mainly related to debt collectiorheTkey factors that affect the occurrence of cradk at
the Group include:
— a substantial number of customers resulting inn@negse in the costs incurred to monitoring debt
collection;
— the necessity to supply electricity to budgetarigaufacing financial difficulties;
— legal requirements defining the principles for &liety supply suspension as a result of default on

payment.

The Management Board applies a credit policy whpobvides for credit risk monitoring on an ongoing
basis.

There is no material credit risk concentration.
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The maximum exposure of the Group to credit rigiréssented below:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Current and non-current financial assets held tturiig 45 5135
Current and non-current financial assets measurkdraalue
through profit or loss 298 199 423 677
Trade and other receivables 1273518 1281517
Cash and cash equivalents 1573 195 1 095 495
Total 3144 957 2805 824

The credit risk relating to receivables differs iiotlividual market segments in which the Groupiearout its
business activities:
= electricity and distribution service sales to indilal customers — a considerable amount of past
due receivables. Although they do not represestiaiss threat to the Group’s financial position,
measures aimed at their reduction have been uhkéderteSteps aimed at improvement of
the collection process have been taken involvingeldgment of new and update of the existing
manuals and principles of collection and cooperatigth professional entities. The collection
process starts 20-25 days after the payment deadlihanks to unified collection policy,
including soft collection, the entity is able toosten the collection period and avoid long-lasting
and quite ineffective hard collections, i.e. enfanent by court or a bailiff. Court or bailiff's
collections are applied to cases whose value itenighan the cost-benefit ratio for debt
collection;
= sales of electricity and distribution services tsibess, key and strategiients, where overdue
receivables are higher than in the segment of iddal clients. However, the collection
procedure is similar and collection measures ardertaken within 6-10 business days of
the payment date;
= other receivables — compared to the above segnieatamounts of past due receivables are

immaterial.

A key role in the debt collection process is play®d employees supervising contacts with customers.
They monitor the debt collection process and collgast due receivables through direct contact with
the customer. Cooperation with a debtor as weblaaining information on its current and futuredicial

position is one of the tasks of the function essiald for that purpose.

The Group monitors the amount of past due recedgabh an ongoing basis and in justified cases Ifigal

complaints and recognizes appropriate impairmessds.

28.3. Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk is the risk that the Group wile unable to meet its financial obligations at date.

The objective of the liquidity risk management @rout by the Group is to reduce the probabilftjoss or
limited ability to repay liabilities to an acceptatlevel. In particular, the policy assumes enguthre ability

to effectively address liquidity crises, i.e. peisomof an increased demand for liquid assets.
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The policy assumes ensuring available cash sufit@repay liabilities in the course of standapg@tions
and to continue undisturbed business operationime of liquidity crisis in the period necessary to

implement emergency financing plan which allowintrease liquidity without delay.

Liquidity management focuses on a detailed analg$ishe receivables collection scheme, the ongoing
monitoring of bank accounts and cash concentratioconsolidated accounts. The financial surpluses a
invested in current assets in the form of term dapoThe Group diversifies sources of externalriting to

mitigate liquidity risk and ensure stability of éincing.

Taking into account ongoing risk management as a®lthe market and financial position of the Grdup

may be concluded that its liquidity risk remaingahinimum level.

Additionally, the Group manages its liquidity rigky maintaining open and unused credit facilities of
PLN 340 167 thousand.
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The Group’s financial assets and liabilities by uni&y are presented in the table below:

31.12.2013

Carrying amount
Undiscounted
contractual cash flows
up to 6 months

6 - 12 months
1-2years

2 —5years

Over 5 years

31.12.2012

Carrying amount
Undiscounted
contractual cash flows
up to 6 months

6 - 12 months
1-2years

2 —5years

Over 5 years

Financial liabilities Financial assets  Financial
Trade and . - Trade and D
Finance lease . measured at fair  Cash and cash measured at fair instruments
other e Bank loans  Borrowings . other Total
L liabilities value through equivalents . value through held to
liabilities - receivables - .
profit or loss profit or loss maturity
1039 714 4724 814 136 28 421 364 (1573 195) (1273 518) (298 199) (45) (1257 598)
(1040 171) (5037) (1 041 299) (36 363) (364) 1576 902 1273974 298 199 45 1 025 886
(1040 171) (1 491) (22 519) (1182) - 1576 902 1190418 298 199 45 2 000 201
- (1587) (22 526) (1 759) (364) - 148 - - (26 088)
- (1 770) (29 135) (15 361) - - 82 626 - - 36 360
- (189) (303 776) (12 690) - - 759 - - (315 896)
- - (663 343) (5371) - - 23 - - (668 691)
Financial liabilities Financial assets  Financial
Trade and . | d at fai h and h Trade and datfair i
other Fmanp_e_ €ase .k loans Borrowings measured at fair  Cas ‘and cas other measured at fair instruments Total
L liabilities value through equivalents . value through held to
liabilities - receivables - h
profit or loss profit or loss maturity
1030771 7742 59 548 15 292 14 (1 095 495) (1281517) (423 677) (5135) (1692 457)
(1030771) (10 450) (65 700) (17 449) (24) 1097 793 1281517 423 677 5135 1683738
(1030 734) (2 183) (10 669) (2013) (24) 1097 793 1273909 423 677 5135 1754 901
(37) (2 231) (12 093) (1193) - - 7 232 - - (8 322)
- (4 090) (21 328) (2972) - - 376 - - (28 014)
- (1 946) (12 660) (4 795) - - - - - (19 401)
- - (8 950) (6 476) - - - - - (15 426)
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28.4. Commodity risk

Commodity risk is related to possible changes wenee/cash flows generated by the Group resulimg,
particular, from fluctuations in commodity pricesdachanging demand for products and services affere
The objective of commodity risk management is tontaén the risk exposure within an acceptable levigle
optimizing the return on risk.

One of the key aspects of the commodity risk resiutim the fact that being an energy company operat
based on an electricity trading and distributiaetise, the Group is required to provide electritztyffs for
the household and prepaid G tariff groups for applcEnterprises engaged in energy production eadirig
are released from the above obligation. The Grawquises energy at market prices and calculatesitf
based on costs regarded as legitimate by the Rrasid the Energy Regulatory Office as well as rmeg
(for electricity trading) planned to be earnedhie subsequent tariff period. Therefore, duringténdf period
the Group’s ability to transfer adverse changeassioperating costs to electricity end users istéoh A tariff
adjustment request may be filed to the Presidenthef Energy Regulatory Office only in the event of
a dramatic rise in costs for reasons beyond Grougigrol.

Commodity risk management in the range of pricimd@ased on continuous monitoring of an open trading
item (both with regard to securing the volume déilesales, and to proprietary trading) and measerg -
using value at risk tools - of the level of risk pdssible electricity price fluctuation with respée such
an open item. An appropriate risk mitigation tecfuei in this case is to close an item that genemtesssive
value of potential loss.

Volumetric commodity risk management involves ugsaenario-based methods and optimization of tigadin
activity planning and control processes.

A commodity risk management based on the aboveiomatt principles, according to schedule, will biyfu
implemented in 2014. In 2013 (and until new commpodisk management rules are implemented),
the management principles defined by the stratexgjalation in place at ENEA Group (so-called Whales
Trading Procedure), defining the operating methoslated to optimization of ENEA's trading position,
with the primary purpose of minimizing the risk @fking actions contrary to the market tendencyintak

account of the efficiency aspect in the contextat trend (achieving better results than the ntaalerage).
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28.5. Currency risk

The exposure of the Group to currency risk is preskbelow.

Including EUR Including USD
amount
amount EUR currenc denominated USD currency Total currency risk
Carrying denominated in - Y ) risk impact on . y
31.12.2013 - risk impact on in the . impact on
amount the functional . - profit/(loss) .
profit/(loss) functional profit/(loss)
currency (USD)
(PLN) currency
(PLN)
+1% -1% +1% -1% 1% -1%
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1573195 65 040 650 (650) 16 0 0) 650 (650)
Trade and other receivables 1273518 1321 13 (13) - - - 13 (13)
Financial assets available for sale 61761 - - - - - - - -
Financial assets measured at fair 298 199 ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
value through profit or loss
Financial assets held to maturity 45 - - - - - - - -
Financial liabilities
ggg;‘rsit'ig;’”""‘””gs and debt (842 557) (14008)  (140) 140 (1 658) an 17 (157) 157
Trade and other liabilities (1039 714) (142 173) (1422) 1422 - - - (1422) 1422
Finance lease liabilities (4724) - - - - - - - -
Financial liabilities measured at fa
value through profit or loss (364) (364) ) 4 ) ) ) 4) 4
Impact on profit/loss before tax (903) 903 a7 17 (920) 920
19% tax 175 (175)
Impact on profit/loss after tax (745) 745
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Including EUR Including USD Including c_)ther
amount amount currencies _ _
Carrying  denominated in EUR currency den'omlnated USD currency amount Cgrrency risk Tota! currency risk
31.12.2012 - risk impact on in the risk impact on denominated in impact on impact on
amount the functional . - . . . .
currency profit/(loss) functional profit/(loss) the functional profit/(loss) profit/(loss)
(PLN) currency currency
(PLN) (PLN)
+1% -1% +1% -1% +1% -1% 1% -1%
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 095 495 20781 208 (208) 17 0 (0) 28 0 0) 208  (208)
Trade and other receivables 1281517 9294 93 (93) - - - - - - 93 (93)
Financial assets available for sale 66 735 - - - - - - - - - - -
Financial assets m_easured at fair 423 677 ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
value through profit or loss
Financial assets held to maturity 5135 - - - - - - - - - - -
Financial liabilities
Loans, borrowings and debt (74 840) (27618)  (276) 276 (3413) (34 34 . - (310) 310
Trade and other liabilities (1030771) (42 349) (424) 424 - - - (377) 4) 4 (428) 428
Finance lease liabilities (7 742) - - - - - - - - - - -
Financial liabilities measured at fa (14) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
value through profit or loss
Impact on profit/loss before tax (399) 399 (34) 34 (4) 4 (437) 437
19% tax 83 (83)
Impact on profit/loss after tax (354) 354
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Currency risk is related to possible changes i dlasvs generated by the Group resulting from fliations

in the rates of the currencies in which such cbshls are denominated.

ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. had a foreign exchange risliding transactions (terminated transactions EWR) t
hedge transactions for purchase of,@0ncluded in 2013. In December 2013 forward catéréhat concern

terminated contracts for G@ith delivery in 2013 were settled.

Valuation of active forward contracts for EUR pumsk on 31 December 2013 amounted to
PLN 363.9 thousand.

28.6. Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk the Group is exposed toltefiom credit facilities and loans taken by ENBAA. and
financial assets in the form of debt securitiegfptio and bank deposits. The Group tends to afipbting

interest correlated with market (interbank) rates.

The table below, presenting financial assets aabiliies by fixed and floating interest rates, wisothe

Group sensitivity to interest rate risk:

Fixed rate instruments 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Financial assets 1290673 1315412
Financial liabilities (1039 714) (1030 771)
Total 250 959 284 641
Floating rate instruments

Financial assets 1854 284 1490 412
Financial liabilities (847 645) (82 596)
Total 1 006 639 1 407 816

Effective interest rate applicable to interest bepassets and liabilities (floating interest ragepresented in

the table below:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Weighted average . Weighted average .
interest rate Carrying interest rate Carrying
%) amount %) amount
Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss 3.61 298 199 5.42 423 677
Cash and cash equivalents 2.90 1 556 085 3.91 1066 735
Finance lease liabilities 6.83 (4 724) 6.42 (7 742)
Loans 3.33 (814 136) 2.90 (59 548)
Borrowings 4.34 (28 421) 5.42 (15 292)
Total 1 007 003 1407 830

The effective interest rates presented in the tableve are determined as the weighted averagetarest

rates.
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The table below presents the impact of interest caanges on the Group’s financial profit/lossffoancial

instruments with floating interest rate:

(;anz%ﬂl?g Intere_st rate risk impact C;%:rgl:?g Intere_st rate risk impact on
31.12.2013 " profit/(loss) (12 months) 31.12.2012 profit/(loss) (12 months)
+1p.p. -1p.p. +1p.p. -1p.p.

Financial assets
Cash 1 556 085 15561 (15 561) 1 066 735 10 667 (10 667)
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss 298 199 2982 (2982) 423 677 4237 (4237)
Impact on profit/loss before tax 18543 (18 543) 14 904 (14 904)
19% tax (3523) 3523 (2832) 2832
Impact on profit/loss after tax 15020 (15 020) 12072 (12072)
Financial liabilities
Loans, borrowings and debt
securities (842 557) (8 426) 8 426 (74 840) (748) 748
Finance lease liabilities (4724) 47 47 (7 742) 77) 77
Financial liabilities measured
at fair value through profit or loss (364) (4) 4 (14) (0) 0
Impact on profit/loss before tax (8477) 8 477 (825) 825
19% tax 1611 (1611) 157 (157)
Impact on profit/loss after tax (6 866) 6 866 (668) 668
Total 8154 (8154 11404 (11 404)

28.7. Capital management

The key assumption of the capital management pa@yeloped by the Group is maintaining an optimum
capital structure with the objective to reducedtst, ensuring a good credit rating and safe dagitas
supporting its operations and increasing its shadeh value. It is also important to maintain ast capital
base being a foundation for building confidencefudfire investors, creditors and market, and engurin
the future development of the Group. In order tantadén or adjust its capital structure, the Grougynmssue
new shares or sell its assets. The Group moni®capital using the debt ratio and the returnauritg ratio.

Its objective is to ensure an optimum level of diffi@rementioned ratios.

28.8. Fair value

The table below presents the fair values as cordgarearrying amounts:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

amount value amount value
Long-term financial assets available for sale
(shares in unrelated parties) 61 761 61 761 66 735 66 735
Non-current financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss 1 860 1860 1504 1504
Current financial assets held to maturity 45 45 5135 5135
Current financial assets measured at fair valu
through profit or loss 296 339 296 339 422 173 422 173
Trade and other receivables 1273518 ™ 1281517 ™
Cash and cash equivalents 1573 195 1573 195 1 095 495 1095 495
Loans, borrowings and debt securities 842 557 842 557 74 840 74 840
Finance lease liabilities 4724 4724 7742 7742
Trade and other liabilities 1039714 ™ 1030771 ™
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss 364 364 14 14

(*) - According to the Group’s estimates the faalue of trade and other receivables and trade #mer o

liabilities does not differ considerably from th&rg/ing amount.
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Financial assets available for sale include sharesrelated parties for which the ratio of intergscapital

to the nominal value is lower than 20%. The failueaof listed assets is estimated using a discoucdsh

flows method. The fair value of not listed assetestimated on the basis of quotations in the actiarket.

Long-term financial assets measured at fair vahreugh profit or loss include units in the “Piorieer

Investment Fund. Their fair value was measuredhat rharket price of participation units, whereas its

changes in the financial period recognized in pafioss.

Short-term financial assets measured at fair véifmeugh profit or loss include an investment pdidfo

managed by a company specialized in professiomdl fsanagement (Note 22) and forward contracts.faihe

value of the investment portfolio is estimated ldase market quotations, while that of forward caots is

determined based on applicable currency rates amkletinterest rates curves. Current financiadtadseld to

maturity include bank deposits with the originattunity from 3 months to 1 year.

The table below presents the analysis of finanicisfruments measured at fair value and classified i

the following three levels:

Level 1 — fair value based on stock exchange pifoeadjusted) offered for identical assets or litds in

active markets,

Level 2 — fair value determined based on marketemagions instead of market quotations (e.g. dimrct

indirect reference to similar instruments tradethaamarket),

Level 3 — fair value determined using various vetuamethods, but not based on any observable rarke

information.

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Non-derivative financial assets held for trading
Financial assets available for sale

Listed equity instruments

Not listed equity instruments

Total

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Forward contracts

Total

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Non-derivative financial assets held for trading
Financial assets available for sale

Listed equity instruments

Not listed equity instruments

Total

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Forward contracts

Total

31.12.2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
298 199 - - 298 199
61 236 - - 61 236
- - 525 525
359 435 - 525 359 960
(364) - - (364)
(364) - - (364)
31.12.2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
423 677 - - 423 677
66 202 - - 66 202
- - 533 533
489 879 - 533 490 412
(14) - - (14)
(14) - - (14)
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Reconciliation of Level 3 items:

Financial assets

available for
sale

Balance as at 1 January 2013 533

Profit/(Loss) 22

Disposal of financial asset (30)

Balance as at 31 December 2013 525

Balance as at 1 January 2012 19914

Disposal of financial asset (19 381)

Balance as at 31 December 2013 533
29. Finance lease liabilities

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Finance lease liabilities — minimum lease payments

Up to 1 year 2 940 3494
1-5years 1784 4248
Present value of lease payments 4724 7742
30. Financial liabilities measured at fair value throudh profit or loss

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Forward contracts (EUR) (364) (14)
Total (364) (14)
31. Deferred income tax

Changes in the deferred tax liability (considerting net-off of asset and liability):

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Deferred tax asset 527 651 475 657
Set off of tax at the level of taxable entities (346 248) (300 576)

Deferred tax asset disclosed in the statement ohéincial position 181 403 175081

Deferred tax provision 566 624 538 487

Set off of tax at the level of taxable entities (346 248) (300 576)

Deferred tax asset disclosed in the statement ohfincial position 220 376 237911
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Changes in the deferred tax asset and liability ithe financial year (prior to their set off)
Deferred tax assets

Provision for

Settlement of

Provision for

Expenses
deductible from

. Liabilities due the costs of disposal,
Receivables revenue from - - taxable base
to employee h redemption Grants reclamation and Other Total
allowance - connection o after the end of
benefits of certificates purchase of CQ
fees L o . the settlement
of origin emissions rights -
period
Balance as at 1 January 2012 — 19% rate 3859 117 491 97 491 46 885 33111 2089 56 472 52 133 409 531
Amount recognized in the profit/loss 917 2571 (2 798) (2652)  (4353) 19 694 20 909 20014 54 302
due to a change in temporary differences
Change recognized in other ) 11 568 ) ) ) ) )
comprehensive income 256 11824
Balance as at 31 December 2012 — 19% rate 4776 131 630 94 693 44 233 28 758 21783 77 381 72 403 475 657
Amount recognized in the profit/loss (236) 11 189 (3 056) 7181 (9 519) 2478 10 796 38577 57 410
due to a change in temporary differences
Change recognized in other
comprehensive income - (5 416) - - - - - - (5 416)
Balance as at 31 December 2012 — 19% rate 4540 137 403 91 637 51414 19 239 24 261 88 177 110 980 527 651
Deferred tax liabilities
Income taxable Accrued Fair value
after the end of unbilled measurement of Other Total
the accounting h
. sales fixed assets
period
Balance as at 1 January 2012 — 19% rate 73 600 41133 361 325 38 739 514 797
Amount recognlz_ed in the proﬁt_/loss 22 566 6 854 (7 291) (1 408) 20 721
due to a change in temporary differences
Change recognized in other ) ) )
comprehensive income 2 969 2 969
Balance as at 31 December 2012— 19% rate 96 166 47 987 354 034 40 300 538 487
Amount recognized in the profit/loss
due to a change in temporary differences 5311 5330 17 343 1319 29 303
Change recognized in other
comprehensive income (223) - - (943) (1166)
Balance as at 31 December 2012 — 19% rate 101 254 53 317 371377 40 676 566 624

The Group has no unrecognized deferred tax agse:tsahilities
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32. Liabilities due to employee benefits

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Defined benefit plans:
Retirement benefits
- long-term portion 70 701 77787
- short-term portion 10 641 14 437
81 342 92 224
Right to energy allowance after retirement
- long-term portion 166 950 197 907
- short-term portion 8 273 8 590
175 223 206 497
Appropriation to the Company’s Social Benefits Fiimdpensioners
- long-term portion 29792 32508
- short-term portion 1034 1126
30 826 33634
Total: Defined benefit plans
- long-term portion 267 443 308 202
- short-term portion 19 948 24 153
287 391 332 355
Other non-current liabilities due to employee benefs
Jubilee bonuses
- long-term portion 207 425 219 451
- short-term portion 27 774 23 039
235199 242 490
Salaries and wages and other liabilities
- long-term portion 1369 14 858
- short-term portion 124 976 130 215
126 345 145 073
Provision for Voluntary Redundancy Programme
- short-term 98111 -
Total liabilities due to employee benefits
- long-term portion 476 237 542 511
- short-term portion 270 809 177 407
747 046 719 918

Based on an arrangement entered into by the repedises of staff and the Group, its employeeseatéled
to specific benefits other than remuneration, i.e.:

* jubilee benefits;

» retirement and disability benefits;

» electricity allowance;

e an appropriation to the Company’s Social Benefitad:

The present value of the related future liabilittess been measured using actuarial methods. Cadnda
were made using basic individual data for the Gremployees as at 31 December 2013 (taking intowetco
their gender) regarding:

e age;

» length of service with the Group;

« total length of service;

e remuneration constituting the assessment basjslfdee benefits as well as retirement and dishbili
benefits.

Additionally, the following assumptions were made the purpose of the analysis:

» the probable number of leaving employees was détedrbased on historical data concerning staff
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turnover in the Group and industry statistics;

» the value of minimum remuneration in the Polishreway since 1 January 2014 was assumed at
PLN 1 680.00;

e pursuant to announcements of the Chairman of tmgr&@leStatistical Office, the average salary in the
Polish economy, less premiums for retirement, menand health insurance paid by the insured was
assumed at PLN 2 917.14 (average amount assumethdosecond half of 2010, which will
constitute the basis for calculating the approfmmato the Company’s Social Benefits Fund in 2013
under the amendment to the Act on Company Socia¢fs Fund dated 8 November 2013);

» under the assumptions defined by the managemehedbroup, the growth of the average salary in
the Polish economy was assumed at 16% in 2014, ;172015, 4.2% in 2016 and 5.0% in the
remaining period of the projection,

= mortality rate and the probability of receiving eéits were adopted in line with the 2012 Life
Expectancy Tables published by the Central Stedik®ffice;

= the value of the provision for disability benefitas not determined separately but the individuals
receiving disability allowance were not taken intimsideration in calculating the employee turnover
ratio;

» standard retirement age was assumed under partigalations of the Act of Pension, excluding
these employees, which fulfill the conditions expedo earlier retirement;

» the long-term pay rise rate was adopted at thd &Eh&3% (as at 31 December 2012: 2.7%);

= the interest rate for discounting future benefitaswadopted at the level of 4.26% (3.9% as at
31 December 2012);

» the base value of the annual equivalent of thetridég to be paid in 2014 was adopted at the lefel
PLN 1 452.24 (PLN 1 471.87 as at 31 December 2012);

* as at 31 December 2013 the electricity price growth for 2014 was assumed at the level (-)6.5%,
for 2015 +16.2% and for 2016 +6.9% , from 2017+2@%at 31 December 2012 assumed for 2013
at the level 2.5%, in 2014 +9.5%, in 2015 +17.182016+7.8%)

« distribution charge growth rate for 2014 was addpaé the level of (-)0.30%, for 2015 +0.0%,
(as at 31 December 2012 the rate adopted for 8a%3.1%, for 2014 +3.8%, for 2015 +2.0%);

» the average growth in the cash equivalent of teetetity allowance was adopted for 2014 at the
level of (-)2.9%, for 2015 +10.2%, for 2016 +6.7%6r 2017 +3.9%, in 2018 — 2025 at the level
4.0%, in 2026-2027 at the level 4.1% and in tha years at the level 2.5% (as at 31 December 2012
the increase in 2013 was adopted at the level3%o2for 2014 +7.0%, for 2015 +10.8%, for 2016
+5.8%, in 2017-2026 at the level 3.9% and in the gears at level 2.5%.

To determine the amount of provisions for emplolyerefits was used the projected unit credit metfbe.

same one was used in analysis of sensitivity ffindd benefit plans.

On 17 December 2013 the Management Board of ENPA&Iopted a resolution to launch the Voluntary
Redundancy Programme (Programme). The Programdeglisated to Employees:

» employed under a contract of employment no matietype and nature of their work;
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* not being in the period of notice and who havesighed an agreement to terminate the employment

contract outside the Programme with a date of gol@ment contract in the future;

» not being employed on other civil or employmenttcacts in another entity within ENEA Group as

at the date of employment contract termination withe Programme;
» belonging to one of the following groups:

(1) Employees who:
(a) have reached a standard retirement age till 31 mleee2013 and did not terminate the
employment contract due to retirement (Group np. 1)
(b) will acquire pension rights arising from achievistgndard retirement age till 31 December
2014,
(2) Employees who are to achieve the standard retireagenwithin 3 year inclusive, counting from
31 December 2014 (Group n. 2).
The Programme is valid from 31 January 2014 tilNgdrch 2014.
Additional Programme is dedicated to Employeeshef Group who will be transferred in accordance with
article no. 23 of Labour Code in connection to created SharediG@eCenter (IT, financing and accounting

and customer service).
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Balance as at 1 January 2013

Changes during 12 months ended

31 December 2013

Costs recognized in profit or loss,
including:

- current employment costs
- post-employment costs

- costs of interests

Costs recognized in other
comprehensive income, including:

net actuarial losses/(profits) due to
adjustments of ex-post assumptions

net actuarial losses/(profits) due to
changes in demographic assumptions

net actuarial losses/(profits) due to
changes in financial assumptions

Decrease in the liability due to benefits pai

Other decrease

Retirement

Right to energy
allowance after

Appropriation to
the Company’s
Social Benefits

Fund for

Total changes

Balance as at 31 December 2013

Balance as at 1 January 2012
Changes during 12 months ended
31 December 2012

Costs recognized in profit or loss,
including:

- current employment costs
- post-employment costs

- costs of interests

Costs recognized in other
comprehensive income, including:

net actuarial losses/(profits) due to
adjustments of ex-post assumptions

net actuarial losses/(profits) due to
changes in demographic assumptions

net actuarial losses/(profits) due to
changes in financial assumptions

Decrease in the liability due to benefits pai

Other changes

Total changes

Balance as at 31 December 2012

benefits retirement pensioners Total
92 224 206 497 33634 332 355
(4 213) 2189 (232) (3 256)
3942 3545 790 8277
(11 208) (9 415) (2 286) (22 909)
3053 8 059 1264 12 376
(207) (25 612) (1512) (27 331)
3298 5 495 299 9 092
2802 3055 614 6471
(6 307) (34 162) (2 425) (42 894)
(6 667) (8 264) (1 057) (15 988)
205 413 (7) 611
(10 882) (31 274) (2 808) (44 964)
81342 175 223 30 826 287 391
Appropriation to
the Company’s
Right to energy Social Benefits
Retirement allowance after Fund for
benefits retirement pensioners Total
85 95! 174 19 26 411 286 554
161 (92 74
368: 316 59 7 445
(7 635 (13 454 (2168 (23 257)
4115 10 29 1 48( 15 886
12 66¢ 39 85 8 36! 60 888
327 (9 884 21 (6 397)
65¢ 277 49 3921
8 74« 46 97 7 641 63 364
(6 751 (7 82z (1024 (15 597)
19¢ 26 (20 436
6 27: 3230 722 45 801
92 22¢ 206 49 3363 332 355

The notes presented on pages 11-105 constitutdegral part of the consolidated financial statetsien

86



ENEA Group

Consolidated financial statements prepared in decme with IFRS-EU for the financial year ended>&tember 2013.

(all amounts in PLN ‘000, unless specified otheayi

Other non-current employee benefits

Opening balance
Changes during 12-month period
Costs recognized in profit or loss, including:
- current employment costs
- post-employment costs
" net actuarial losses/(profits) due to adjustmehesxgpost assumptions
net actuarial losses/(profits) due to changes madgaphic assumptions
net actuarial losses/(profits) due to changesnarftial assumptions
- costs of interests
Decrease in the liability due to benefits paid
Other changes
Total changes

Closing balance

Sensitivity analysis for defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans

Discount rate

Anticipated rise in the salaries and wages

Average rise in the cash equivalent of the eldtyrallowance

Maturity of liabilities due to defined benefit plans

The weighted average duration of liabilities due talefined benefit plans
(in years)

Retirement benefits

Right to energy allowance after retirement
Appropriation to the Company’s Social Benefits Fiimdpensioners

33. Provisions for liabilities and other charges

Provision for liabilities and other charges divided
into short and long-term portion

Long-term
Short-term
Closing balance

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

242 490 201 082
16 469 65 140
12 74¢ 10 920
(4 590 12 315
4 88t 9379

6 38¢ 1535
(11 557 20 477
8 59¢ 10514
(23 478, (23 319)
(282 (413)

(7 291) 41 408
235 199 242 490

Actuarial assumptions change impact on
the liabilities due to defined benefit plans

+1p.p. -1p.p.
(35872) 44 654
14 810 (12 234)
27 493 (22 362)
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
15,7 15,5
16,1 151
17,6 16,9
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
407 735 247 724
443 260 375 864
850 995 623 588
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Change in provisions for liabilities and other chages

for the period ended
31 December 2013

Provision for

Provision ; . Provision for ~ Provision  Provision
projected Provision
for non- the for for CO,
losses due to for land . o . Other Total
contractual . - environmental certificates emissions
compensation reclamation - .
use of land . fee of origin rights
proceedings
Opening balance 159 861 23 695 24 648 2098 236 083 90361 86842 623 588
Reversal of discount and
discount rate change - - (2 968) - - - - (2 968)
Increase in provisions 42 508 196 9023 710 372 165 105149 155174 684 925
Provisions applied (4 144) (48) (239) (1704) (324 541) (90 361) (5627) (426 664)
Unused provision reversec (11 309) (1772) - (710) (9 064) - (5 031) (27 886)
Closing balance 186 916 22 071 30 464 394 274 643 105149 231 358 850 995
for the period ended
31 December 2012
Provision Provision for Provision for ~ Provision  Provision
projected Provision
for non- the for for CO,
losses due to for land . o L Other Total
contractual . . environmental certificates emissions
compensation reclamation e .
use of land ) fee of origin rights
proceedings
Opening balance 99 262 26 508 9 856 2094 247 147 84694 68422 537 983
Reversal of discount and
discount rate change - - 13781 - - - - 13781
Increase in provisions 128 570 27 348 2076 2 706 434 108 90361 48092 733 261
Provisions applied (32 733) (1043) (1 065) (2702) (444 437) (81 858) (22445) (586 283)
Unused provision reversec (35 238) (29 118) - - (735) (2836) (7227) (75 154)
Closing balance 159 861 23 695 24 648 2 098 236 083 90361 86842 623 588

Provisions for liabilities are determined in reaalole, reliably estimated amounts. Individual primns are

recognized for projected losses related to couibradrought against the Group. The amount recaghies

a provision is the best estimate of the expenditequired to settle a claim. The cost of provisiasis

recognized under other operating expenses. A qigeri of material claims and the related contingent

liabilities has been presented in Notes 50.2, 88¢550.6.

Provisions for liabilities and other charges indudainly:

Provision for non-contractual use of land

Provision for claims of persons holding possessibneal properties, arising out of non-contractusé of

land. The provision for claims concerning non-cactual use of real properties is valuated accortbngp-

called staged approach and weighting, i.e. theahitiby of losing the dispute and necessity toifule claim.

In 2013, ENEA Group - in relation to, inter aligtdraft Transmission Corridors Act - estimated gwctlided

in the value of the provision the damages for nontiactual use of the real properties on whichgttie assets

are located (power lines), for which no claims hgetebeen presented as at the reporting date.
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Provision for land reclamation

After closing or filling a slag and ash dump, theo@ is obliged to carry out appropriate land rewtion. As

the Group has large unfilled dumps, land reclamai®planned for 2060. Future estimated costs od la
reclamation were discounted to their current valsieg a discount rate of 4.26% (as at 31 Decemb&? &

was 3.9%).

As at 31 December 2013 the provision amounted td BQ 464 thousand (as at 31 December 2012 it was
PLN 24 648 thousand).

Provision for purchasing CO, emissions rights
As at 31 December 2013 the provision for nissions rights amounted to PLN 105 149 thougardat
31 December 2012 it was PLN 90 361 thousand). Tétaild related to COemission rights have been

presented in Note 18.

Other provisions

Other provisions consists mainly of the provision otential liabilities related with electricitpfrastructure
and resulting from differences in interpretation lafvs and regulations (as at 31 December 2013:
PLN 214 591 thousand, as at 31 December 2012: FLRI® thousand) and costs of using forest lands

managed by State Forests.

34. Net sales revenue

01.01.2013 -31.12.2013  01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012

Revenue from sales of electricity 5832 788 6 768 335
Revenue from sales of distribution services 2833784 2 813 446
Revenue from sales of goods and materials 84 333 127 603
Revenue from sales of other services 142 240 129 573
Revenue from sales of G@mission rights 52 844 32 849
Revenue from sales of certificates of origin 14 236 62 225
Compensation to cover stranded costs 964 (21 647)
Revenue from sales of heat 189 331 178 966
Total net sales revenue 9 150 520 10 091 350

35. Costs by type

01.01.2013 - 31.12.201 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012

Amortization and depreciation (761 759) (749 737)
Costs of employee benefits (1 036 215) (1 009 467)
- salaries and wages (782 860) (753 756)
- social security and other benefits (253 355) (255 711)
Consumption of materials, raw materials, valueads

and materials sold (1 753 573) (1 909 695)
- consumption of materials and energy (1 658 646) (1743 443)
- bonus from suppliers - 267
- cost of goods and materials sold (94 927) (166 519)
Cost of energy purchased for sale (3303 371) (4 097 265)
External services (1019 216) (1148 787)
- transmission services (599 170) (714 451)
- other external services (420 046) (434 336)
Taxes and charges (244 240) (224 857)

Total costs of products, goods and materials sold,
costs of sales and marketing and general
and administrative costs (8 118 374) (9 139 808)
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36. Costs of employee benefits

01.01.2013 - 31.12.201% 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012

Payroll expenses, including: (782 860) (753 756)
- current salaries and wages (685 079) (696 705)
- jubilee benefits (4 504) (51 551)
- retirement benefits 7182 2227
- other (100 459) (7 727)
Social security and other benefits (253 355) (255 711)

- Social Security premiums (141 031) (146 690)
- appropriation to the Company’s Social Benefitsé (25 096) (29 840)
- other social benefits (63 831) (54 454)
- other post-employment benefits (11 264) (11 330)
- other (12 133) (13 397)
Total (1 036 215) (1 009 467)

Employment guarantees

Based on an arrangement entered into by the Grodgdador unions, specific employment guaranteeg hav
been given to people employed by the Group bef@eJ@ne 2007 (except for employees of ENEA
Wytwarzanie S.A.), which expire on 31 December 2018

Furthermore, the provisions of the aforementionedregement will remain in force longer for employee
who, at the expiry of the guarantees, have maxinmum years to satisfy the conditions to acquiregi@m
rights. This implies that in the event the emplofgls to comply with the guarantees, employmenttiacts
may not be terminated without payment of additiom&nefits to employees who, at the expiry of
the guarantees, have maximum four years to sdtisfgonditions to acquire pension rights.

Under the employment guarantees, the Group is etlig pay an employee an amount being the product o
their monthly salary and the remaining period o thuarantee validity if the employment contract is
terminated by the employer.

Pursuant to a social contract concluded on 10 AugQa87 between ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. and labor
unions, employees of that entity obtained an emplyt guarantee extended by 11 years as at theacontr

effective date, i.e. by 30 January 2019.

Other payroll expenses

Other payroll expenses consist of the provision\fotuntary Redundancy Programme. The rules rel&ted
the provision are presented in Note 32.

37. Other operating revenue and expense

Other operating revenue
01.01.2013 - 31.12.201 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012

Release of provisions for damages claims 11 256 2032
Release of other provisions 898 9 239
Reimbursement of expenses by an insurance company 3196 4 603
Settlement of income due to subsidies and connetties 20534 15978
Damages, fines, penalties 10 906 17 945
Reversal of unused impairment losses 24 951 15274
Fixed assets received free of charge 25 482 23130
Other operating revenue 27 864 19 958
Total 125 087 108 159
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Other operating expenses

01.01.2013 - 31.12.201 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012

Cost of provisions for damages (32 858) (59 460)
Cost of other provisions (157 004) (47 496)
Impairment loss on receivables (15 251) (16 423)
Write-off of irrecoverable receivables (2 200) (7 071)
Impairment loss on inventories (1 594) (6 626)
Costs of court proceedings (7 387) (5722)
Trade union related expenses (1542) (1 546)
Damages for non-contractual use of property (4 144) (35 468)
Other operating expenses (26 974) (41 054)
Total (248 954) (220 866)

38. Financial revenue

01.01.2013 -31.12.2013 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012

Interest income 76 886 134132
- bank accounts and deposits 37 567 81 141
- other loans and receivables 16 321 6 081
- other interest income 22998 46 910
Foreign exchange differences 1064 7
-realized foreign exchange differences — hedging 371 -
-accrued foreign exchange differences - hedging 662 -
-other foreign exchange differences 31 7
Change in fair value of financial instruments - 2594
Other financial revenue 10 194 11913
Total 88 144 148 646

39. Financial expenses

01.01.2013 - 31.12.201% 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012

Interest expense (11 283) (15 131)
- interest expense on loans and credit facilities (6 822) (5134)
- finance lease expenses 47) (379)
- other interest (4 414) (9 618)
Exchange differences (2 304) (17 828)
- exchange differences on credit facilities anchipa (1 009) 1325
- other exchange differences (1 295) (19 153)
Costs of discounted liabilities due to employeedfie (19 573) (38 445)
Change in the fair value of financial instruments (9 873) (10 922)
Other financial expenses (1788) (1807)
Total (44 821) (84 133)

40. Income tax

01.01.2013 - 31.12.201% 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2013

Current tax (257 974) (227 478)
Deferred tax (Note 33) 28 107 35035
Total (229 867) (192 443)

The income tax on gross profit before tax differad the theoretical amount resulting from applcatof the

nominal tax rate applicable to the Group’s consaéd profit in the following manner:

01.01.2013 - 31.12.201Z 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012

Profit/(loss) before tax 945 231 886 509
Tax at a 19% rate (179 594) (168 437)
Non-deductible costs *19% (19 486) (28 605)
Long-term contracts on the sale of power and etgigtr (7 710) -

Non-taxable revenue *19% 2242 6 738
Unrecognized deferred tax asset from tax lossesbsidiaries (14 398) -

Other *19% (10 921) (2139)
Amount charged to profit or loss due to income tax (229 867) (192 443)
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41. Dividend

A decision regarding the payment of dividend fog fmancial year shall be made by General Sharehsld
Meeting in 2014. The Management Board intends ¢p@se using 30% of 2013 separate profit of ENEA S.A
for the dividend payment.

On 24 June 2013 the General Shareholders’ MeefifgN&A S.A. adopted resolution no. 7 concerning net
profit distribution for the financial period fromJanuary 2012 to 31 December 2012 whereby theetiddor
the shareholders amounted to PLN 158 919 thoudamitlend per share amounted to PLN 0.36 (dividend
paid during 2012 for the financial year 2011 amednto PLN 211 892 thousand, i.e. PLN 0.48 per ghare
The dividend had been fully paid to the sharehsldiefore the end of the reporting period. The payroéthe
dividend to shareholders was decreased by incaxentaapital gains.

42. Earnings per share

01.01.2013 - 31.12.201: 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2012

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Rare 715 368 699 673
Number of ordinary shares 441 442 57¢ 441 442 578
Net earnings per share (in PLN per share) 1.62 1.58
Diluted earnings per share (in PLN) 1.62 1.58

43. Related party transactions

The companies of the Group conclude the followilgted party transactions:
= The Group’s constituent entities — transactionsetireinated at the consolidation stage;
= transactions concluded between the Group and Membleits governing bodies fall within two
categories:
» those resulting from employment contracts with Menstof the Supervisory Board;
» resulting from other agreements under civil law.

= Transactions with entities whose shares are hettidptate Treasury of the Republic of Poland.

Transactions with members of the Group’s goveribiodies:

Management Board Supervisory Board
of the Company of the Company
01.01.2013 - 01.01.2012-  01.01.2013-  01.01.2012 -
Item 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Remuneration under managerial contracts
and consultancy agreements 6 709 3151 - -
Remuneration relating to appointment
of members of supervisory bodies 23 514 393 378
Remuneration due to other employee
benefits (electricity allowance) 33 108 - -
TOTAL 6 765 3773 393 378

As at the end of the reporting period the liakghtiresulting from managerial contracts and conscyta

agreements to the members of the Management Bofriheo Parent amount to PLN 675 thousand.
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The provision for bonuses to the members of the ddament Board of the Parent Unit amount as at
31 December 2013 PLN 2 191 thousand.

The increase in remuneration under managerial @ctstrand consultancy agreements in 2013 in conguaris
to 2012 is attributable to remuneration under nomyoetition agreements to the former Managementdofr

the Parent. Changes in composition of the Pardfdisagement Board have been presented in Note 1.2.

Transactions related to loans from the Companytseb®&enefits Fund:

Governing body Balance as at Granted from Repaid till Balance aat
01.01.2013 01.01.2013 31.12.2013 31.12.2013
Supervisory Board 21 10 (4) 27
TOTAL 21 10 4 27
Governing body Balance as at Granted from Repaid till Balance aat
01.01.2012 01.01.2012 31.12.2012 31.12.2012
Supervisory Board 21 24 (24) 21
TOTAL 21 24 (24) 21

Other transactions resulting from agreements ungérlaw concluded between the Parent and Membérs
the Parent’'s Bodies relate only to private useahjgany’s cars by Members of the Management Board of
ENEA S.A.

The Group also concludes business transactions avitlies of the central and local administratiard a
entities controlled by the State Treasury of thpudic of Poland.
The transactions concern mainly:

e purchase of coal, electricity and property rightsulting from certificates of origin as regards
renewable energy and energy cogenerated with tieagmission and distribution services provided
by the Group to companies whose shares are hdlikb$tate Treasury;

« sale of electricity, distribution services, conmectto the grid and other related fees, provideth bo
to central and local administration bodies (salerd users) and entities whose shares are held by

the State Treasury (wholesale and retail sale dousers).

Such transactions are concluded under arm’s letegtiis and their conditions do not differ from thegplied

in transactions with other entities. The Group dnes keep a register which would allow it to aggeg
the values of all transactions with state instingi and entities whose shares are held by the Biassury.
One of the most important buyers of the ENEA Grampong entities controlled by the State Treasury is
Polskie Sieci Elektroenergetyczne S.A. with thegsaés amounted to PLN 167 409 thousand (in 2023t
Kompania Wglowa S.A. PLN 135 209 thousand). The biggest sepmf ENEA Group among entities
controlled by the State Treasury is Polskie Sidekfoenergetyczne Group with the purchases amogindi
PLN 684 357 thousand (in 2012 PLN 800 949 thousand)
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44. Concession arrangements on the provision of publgervices

The key business activities carried out by the @Grioglude generation, distribution and trading lecéicity.
In line with the provisions of the Energy Law, 06 Rovember 1998 the Parent obtained the followimg t
concessions to carry out its business activities:
» concession for trading in electricity, granted éct0-year period, i.e. until 30 November 2008;
» concession for electricity transmission and distiitn, granted also for a 10-year period, i.e.lunti
30 November 2008;

ENEA Operator Sp. z 0.0.has a concession for distribution of electricitfetive till 1 July 2017.

On 23 April 2007TENEA S.A. filed a request to the President of the EnergyuRegry Office to extend
the validity of the concession for trading in efaity. On 5 October 2007 ENEA S.A. received a dixi on

extension of the validity of the concession foding in electricity until 31 December 2025.

On 12 September 20IBNEA S.A. received a concession for trading in gaseous fineis the President of
Energy Regulatory Office. The concession will béidvdrom 1 January 2014 till 31 December 2030. The

company plans to start retail sales of naturalig2914.

The core business dENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. involves generation of electricity and heat based

concessions granted by the President of the EriRegylatory Office.

Concession for electricity production:
 Concession of 31 August 2007 for production efcticity in devices of total installed capacity amting
to 2,845 MW (concession valid till 31 December 2025

Concession for trading in electricity:
» Concession of 21 December 2012 involving tradihglectricity for the needs of consumers locatadhe

territory of the Republic of Poland (concessiorid/éill 31 December 2030).

Concession for heat production:
« Concession of 31 August 2007 regarding cogereraif heat in a power plant locatedSwierze Gérne,

with the total heat generating capacity of 2 845 Ntkié concession is valid till 31 December 2025).

Concession for heat transmission and distribution:

» Concession of 31 August 2007 for transmission distribution of internally produced heat througtot
heating networks iSwierze Gorne (the concession is valid till 31 Decemt@g5).

» Concession of 17 July 2012 for conducting a lessnrelated to transmission and distribution ot Ifiee

concession is valid till 31 December 2025).
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ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. has been current with paymeeiated to concessions. It filed a statement on
meeting concession requirements and making apjateppayments to the President of the Energy Regylat

Office in due time.

ENEA Trading Sp. z 0.0.has a concession for trading in electricity far greriod till 31 December 2030. The
concession covers business activities in tradingjéstricity for the needs of buyers located inadhdl ENEA

Trading Sp. z 0.0. has also concession for trautirgaseous fuels till 31 December 2030.

Elektrocieptownia Biatystok S.A. (now ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A.) has the following cessions:
1. Concession for electricity production for the pdridl 31 October 2018,

2. Concession for heat production for the period3tlllOctober 2018,

3. Concession for trading in electricity for the peridl 27 June 2020,
4

Concession for heat transmission and distributisritfe period till 5 August 2016.

MEC Pita Sp. z 0.0 andPEC Sp. z o.owith headquarter in Oborniki have a concessiomsgémeration,
transmission and distribution of heat till 31 Dedem2025.

45, Long-term contracts on the sale of power and eledtity (LTC)

ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. applied for the advance ia #mount of PLN 18,000 thousand to cover stranded
costs in 2013. Till 31 December 2013 Zatea Rozliczé S.A. made an advance payment for the whole 2013
year. During the period from January to Decembek320ncome from compensation of stranded costs for
2013 have not been recognized, except for the ammuRLN 964 thousand resulting from the ruling of
10 April 2013 related to 2009.

For 2014 ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. applied for advaimcthe amount of PLN 17,000 thousand.

On 10 April 2013, hearing concerning determinatioh stranded costs compensation for ENEA
Wytwarzanie S.A. for 2009 was held at the CourtAqfpeal in Warsaw. The Court of Appeal partly
considered the appeal of the President of EnergyuRRtory Office (URE) to the judgment of Court for
Competition and Consumer Protection (SOKIK) of 2ie)2012. The Court of Appeal reversed the judgment
under appeal in this way, that it determined thewamh of the annual adjustment to be PLN 16,544 ghand,

i.e. at the higher of PLN 964 thousand than thewhaget out in the decision of the President ofrgye
Regulatory Office (URE). The Court of Appeal didtmpprove a substantial part of the annual adjustme
determined in the judgment of the District Courh @8 May 2013 Zargdca Rozliczé S.A. made a payment
of PLN 964 thousand. The judgment is legally bigdi®n 30 October 2013 ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. filed
cassation appeal.

On 10 July 2013 the Court of Appeal announced wiag on LTC for 2008. Pursuant to that ruling, theurt
refused the appeal of the President of URE agdirstuling of the Regional Court of 20 April 201Phe
President of URE'’s decision was amended as lepaliging and was determined as PLN (-) 4 192 thodisan
instead of original amount of PLN (-) 89 537 thautaThe sentence means that all substantial ailtegat
included in the appeal against the decision ofRhesident of URE had been considered. On 24 July 20
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ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. received a payment of PLN54@, thousand from Zasdca Rozliczé S.A.

In January 2014 the President of URE filed cassatjzpeal.

On 5 August 2013 ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. received deeision of the President of Energy Regulatory
Office determining the stranded costs compensdion2012 to be returned to Zadca Rozliczé S.A.
amounting to PLN 17,687 thousand until 30 Septen20di3. On 14 August 2013 ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A.
appealed the decision of the President of EnergguRéory Office to the Court for Competition and
Consumer Protection, the Regional Court in Warspplygng suspension of decision enforcement ungl th
case is decided. On 9 September 2013 the Cour€Cdmonpetition and Consumer Protection, the Regional
Court in Warsaw decided to suspend execution ofidwsion of the President of Energy Regulatoryideff
dated 30 July 2013 determining the annual strawdsts adjustment until the case is decided. Orah8aly
2014 the Court for Competition and Consumer Pratecthe Regional Court in Warsaw, after the hegrin
issued a judgment determining the amount of thesalnadjustment for 2010 to be PLN (+) 78 640 thodsa
i.e. at the higher of PLN 76 168 thousand thanatimeunt set out in the decision. The court upheddathpeal

in its entirety in its original version. The judgmes not legally binding and it is subject to qpeal.

The date of the hearing related to annual adjudtrf@nthe year 2011 has been set for 19 March 2014,

whereas the date of the hearing related to anmijadtanent for 2012 has not been determined.

46. Future payments due to the right of perpetual usufuct acquired for a consideration and free of charge

as well as lease, rental and operating lease agresmts

The future liabilities arising from the right of gpetual usufruct (according to 2013 charges) applyhe
remaining term of agreements for the use of lafid9@ years). They are recognized in accordance IWRS

EU as operating leases, where the Group actsessed:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Up to 1 year 4807 4 464
1-5years 20736 19 606
Over 5 years 345 689 329 365
371232 353435
Future liabilities arising from rental and opergtiease agreements:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Up to 1 year 11518 9785
1-5years 25099 27722
Over 5 years 10 141 10714
46 758 48 221
Perpetual usufruct and lease and rental expensegmieed in period:
2013 2012
Perpetual usufruct of land 4 464 4078
Lease, rental and operating lease agreements 9785 8 594
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Operating lease payments recognized in expenses

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Minimum lease payments (7 784) (8 431)
Revenue from sub-lease (-) (6) 3
(7 790) (8.428)

Significant operating lease agreements of theiestih the ENEA Group have been presented below:

ENEA S.A. - the subject of lease are rental of office buim, apartments, parking lots, warehouses,

advertising space and land.

ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. - the subject of lease are vehicles and trucks.

47. Future liabilities under contracts concluded as athe end of the reporting period

Contractual obligations assumed as at the endeofgporting period, not yet recognized in the shetet of

financial position:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 5026 671 5516 356

Acquisition of intangible assets 9 300 62 473

5035971 5578 829

48. Employment
12 months ended 12 months ended
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Blue-collar positions 4980 5140
White-collar positions 5026 4 986
TOTAL 10 006 10 126

The data in the table is presented in FTE equitaManagerial positions are qualified as white @otnes.

49. Explanations of the seasonal and cyclical nature d¢fie Group’s business

The seasonality of electricity consumption by theipients depends on low temperature and shorter idia
winter. These factors are becoming less of an itlnpacsales volumes of energy by ENEA S.A. due ® th
very high dynamics of the seller, especially amoustomers in tariff groups A and B, and also ingagment
of customers connected to the low voltage (taniffups C and G). The process of switching will havéhe
near future more and more influence on the shasales of the various periods of the year, anceasingly
irrelevant will be seasonal consumption by cust@mer

50. Contingent liabilities and proceedings before cous, arbitration or public administration bodies

50.1. Sureties and guarantees

In 2013 ITSERWIS Sp. z o.0. issued a guaranteeaftrenefit of Financial Supervision Commission as
collateral of proper performance of a contract. @heount of the guarantee amounts to PLN 125 thalisan
PEC Sp. z 0.0. issued a guarantee for a benefitcoNational Fund for Environmental Protection &idter

Management in PozhaThe amount of guarantee is PLN 2 860 thousand.
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During 2012 ENEA Operator Sp. z 0.0. has issuediraty for the benefit of Ministry of Economy as

a collateral for proper performance of a contribe amount of the collateral equals to PLN 1 95ugand.

50.2.Pending proceedings before courts of general jurisction

Actions brought by the Group

Actions which ENEA S.A. and ENEA Operator Sp. z.doought to courts of general jurisdiction refer t
claims for receivables due to provision of eledtyithe so—called electricity cases) and claims dther
receivables — illegal consumption of electricitgnoections to the grid and other specialized sesvithe so-

called non-electricity cases).

Actions brought to courts of general jurisdictiop BNEA Wytwarzanie S.A. are connected mainly with

claims for receivables due to breaches of forwardigreements and liquidated damages from suppliers.

As of 31 December 2013, the total of 8 780 casesdht by the Group were pending before commontsour
for the total amount of PLN 108 164 thousand (18 8&ses for the total amount of PLN 70 979 thousend
at 31 December 2012).

None of the individual case can significantly affde Group’s profit.

Actions brought against the Group

Actions against the Group are brought both by ehtand legal persons. They mainly refer to sucheissas
compensation for interrupted delivery of electsiciidentification of illegal electricity consumptioand
compensation for the Group’s use of real propettene electrical devices are located. The Groupiders
actions concerning non-contractual use of real gmygpnot owned by the Group as particularly impatta
(Note 50.5).

As at 31 December 2013 there were 1 589 casesmehdfore common courts which have been brought
against the Group for the total amount of PLN 25T 9housand (1 102 cases for the total amount of

PLN 176 262 thousand as at 31 December 2012)idfvos related to the court cases have been pesbent
Note 33.

50.3. Arbitration proceedings

Actions brought against the Group

As at 31 December 2013, arbitration proceedingsevpanding, brought by Gestamp Eolica S.A. against
ENEA S.A. for payment of damages under the "Joievddopment Agreement between ENEA and Gestamp
Eolica" dated 25 November 2008. In a judgment djihation Court dated 19 January 2012, paymenhef t
amount of EUR 3 321 926 was adjudicated against ASEA. in favour of Gestamp Eolica S.A., together

with the costs of the arbitration proceedings dmel ¢osts of representation, amounting to PLN 230. 00
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ENEA S.A. appealed against the above mentionednead to the Court of Appeal in PoZznavhich ruled to
dismiss the Company's appeal against the Arbittal@ourt's judgment on 18 September 2013. On
22 November 2013, the Appeals Court in Pazdamissed ENEA S.A.'s complaint against assignnoént
immediate enforcement clause to an arbitrationtawiling.

A cassation appeal against the judgment of the tGukppeal in Pozn@aof 18 September 2013 was brought
to the Supreme Court on 18 January 2014 and aatetod these consolidated financial statementsnitains

unresolved.

Actions brought by the Group

As at 31 December 2013, arbitration proceedingsevpending, brought by ENEA S.A. against Equiventus
Capital S.A.R.L. for payment of damages in the amaf EUR 171,912.57 pursuant to Annex No. 1 dated
17 April 2012 to the preliminary contract of saleatl shares in Windfarm Polska Sp. z 0.0. execlgdhe
above mentioned parties on 25 November 2011, anpiafgment of the amount of EUR 8,556,735.25 pursuan
to the preliminary contract of sale of all shanedNindfarm Polska Sp. z 0. 0., which is referrechbmve —
Equiventus Capital S.A.R.L. was obliged to repdytle#d amounts payable by Windfarm Polska Sp. z tn.o.
Vestas Poland Sp. z 0. 0. under civil works comsgtaBoth claims were referred to the Arbitrationblinal in
Paris and covered by joint proceedings. As at 3debwer 2013, above mentioned proceedings remained i

the preliminary phase.

50.4.Proceedings before public administration bodies

On 28 December 2009, the President of the EnergylB®ry Office issued a decision on ENEA's failtoe
comply with the obligation to purchased electrigtpduced in the energy cogenerated with heat systehe
first half of 2007, imposing a fine of PLN 2,15®@tlsand on the Company. On 20 February 2013 thet @bur
Appeal dismissed the appeal of the President oEtiergy Regulatory Office and upheld the senteridbeo
Regional Court in Warsaw — the Court of Competitiord Consumer Protection from 6 March 2012, which
repealed the decision of the President of the BndRggulatory Office about imposing a fine of
PLN 2,150 thousand on the Company. FurthermoreCiart ordered the reimbursement of the costs @f th
appeal in the amount of PLN 270 from the Presiddgrnthe Energy Regulatory Office to ENEA S.A. The
verdict is valid. On 18 June 2013 the PresiderthefEnergy Regulatory Office filed cassation appeainst

the sentence.

On 27 November 2008, the President of the EnergyuRéory Office issued in 2009 a decision on ENEA’s
failure to comply with the obligation to purchasel@ctricity produced in the energy cogenerated \wiht
system in the first half of 2006, imposing a fifePb N 7,594 thousand on the Company.

On 4 January 2013 ENEA S.A. appealed against ttgnpent of 10 December 2012.

On 14 October 2013, the Court of Appeal in Warsawoainced a ruling on the above case. Pursuanato th
ruling, the Decision of the President of Energy Ratpry Office of 27 November 2008 was amendechat t
the amount of the fine was decreased from PLN 7fh@dsand to PLN 3,600 thousand. The costs of the
proceeding have been endured (neither party isirezjto pay the costs to the other party). On 24oBer
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2013 ENEA S.A. transferred the above mentioned aantmuthe National Fund for Environmental Protectio

and Water Management.

On 22 January 2013 the Supreme Administrative CanrtWarsaw dismissed 6 appeals by ENEA
Wytwarzanie against the decision of the Local Goreant Board of Appeals in Warsaw concerning reftesal
confirm and return overpaid excise tax for the rhentJuly 2006, August 2006, March 2006, May 2006,
September 2006, June 2006 and as a result of therawal of complaints discontinued 6 complaintshef
Director of the Customs Chamber in Warsaw on thewrof excise duties for the months: January 2006,
February 2006, March 2006, May 2006, June 200§, 2006.

On 23 January 2013 the Supreme Administrative CanrtWarsaw dismissed 6 appeals by ENEA
Wytwarzanie against the decision of the Local Gorrent Board of Appeals in Warsaw concerning reftsal
confirm and return overpaid excise tax for the rhentJlanuary 2006, February 2006, April 2006, Oatobe
2006, October 2008, February 2009 and as a rektiieavithdrawal of complaints discontinued 6 coaipts

of the Director of the Customs Chamber in Warsawhenamount of excise duties for the months: Sepgem
2007, October 2007, November 2007, January 200tuBey 2007, March 2007.

On 24 January 2013 the Supreme Administrative CaortWarsaw dismissed 6 appeals by ENEA
Wytwarzanie against the decision of the Local Gorrent Board of Appeals in Warsaw concerning reftsal
confirm and return overpaid excise tax for the rhenNovember 2006, July 2007, August 2007, February
2008, March 2008, May 2008 and as a result of tilednawal of complaints discontinued 6 complaintshe
Director of the Customs Chamber in Warsaw on theuwn of excise duties for the months: July 2007,
August 2007, September 2007, November 2007, Deaed@y, January 2008.

On 29 January 2013 the Supreme Administrative CaurWarsaw dismissed 10 appeals by ENEA
Wytwarzanie against the decision of the Local Gorrent Board of Appeals in Warsaw concerning reftsal
confirm and return overpaid excise tax for the rhenDecember 2006, January 2007, February 2007 Apr
2007, January 2008, April 2008, August 2008, Septr2008, November 2008, January 2009 and as & resu
of the withdrawal of complaints discontinued 2 cdems of the Director of the Customs Chamber in
Warsaw on the amount of excise duties for the nrikbruary 2008, April 2008.

On 12 February 2013 the Supreme Administrative CaurWarsaw dismissed 10 appeals by ENEA
Wytwarzanie against the decision of the Local Goreant Board of Appeals in Warsaw concerning reftesal
confirm and return overpaid excise tax for the rhenMarch 2007, May 2007, June 2007, September,2007
October 2007, November 2007, December 2007, Jud8, 2ailly 2008, December 2008 and as a result of the
withdrawal of complaints discontinued 2 complaiofghe Director of the Customs Chamber in Warsaw on
the amount of excise duties for the months: A&, December 2006.

With a decision dated 5 November 2013, the Heati@Radom Customs Office informed that resolution o
procedures for determining the excise tax liabildy the months: August 2006, April 2007, May 200dne
2007 and October 2007 would be issued till 31 M&eh4.

On 20 January 2011 ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A. (then Eteinia ,Kozienice” S.A.) applied for reinstatement
the deadline to declare the amount of electricibjmsumed in the production of electricity process in

December 2010, which is exempted from excise duty.
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On 3 February 2011 The Head of the Radom Customeedféfused the reinstatement the deadline to fatwa
the abovementioned declaration.

As a result of a complaint filed the Director oét@ustoms Chamber in Warsaw with a decision ofi8¢ J
2013 reversed the aforementioned decision of 3ugepr2011 and remanded the case for reconsiderttion
the Head of the Radom Custom Office.

With a decision of 20 February 2013 the Head ofRlaglom Custom Office discontinued the proceeding on
reinstatement the deadline to declare the amoudt ume of electricity consumed in the production of
electricity process in December 2010, which is epieah from excise duty.

On 20 March 2013 a law firm acting on behalf of ENRVytwarzanie S.A. filed an appeal against the
aforementioned decision. The appeal has not beamierd till the date of these consolidated financia

statements.

50.5. Risk related to the legal status of property usedybthe Group

The risk related to the legal status of the prgopased by the Group results from the fact thatGheup does
not have all legal titles to use the land wheradnaission networks and the related devices areddca
The Group may have to incur costs related to narraotual use of property in the future.

Considering the legal status, there is a risk alitaahal costs related to compensation claims fon-n
contractual use of land, rental fee or, rarelyinetarelated to the change of facility location {oemg land to
its previous condition).

Decisions related to these issues are importartheg considerably affect the Group’s strategy talsar
persons who lodged pre-trial claims related to cewvilocated on their land in the past and the amproo
the legal status of devices in case of new investsne

The risk of loss of assets is low. The lack of legjatus of the land where transmission networksl@cated
does not constitute the risk of loss of Group’setssbut result in a risk of potential additionaktto be
incurred as a result of claims for non-contractuseg of land, rental and easement fees or excepyipira
individual cases, relocation of assets (restoradibtine land to the original state). The relevamvsions for
that purpose have been made by the Group.

ENEA Group recognized also provision for the congations for non-contractual use of the real progedn
which the grid assets are located (power lines)¢cannection to transmission corridors and transonss
easements on the above mentioned real properties.

As at 31 December 2013 the Group recognized thégiom for non-contractual use of land in the antoafn
PLN 186 916 thousand.

50.6. Court proceedings to establish the ineffectiveneswithdrawal from the contract with Infovide-Matri x S.A.

On 20 September 2013 ENEA SA withdrew from the Enpntation contract for the construction and
implementation of the Customer Service Informat®ystem including billing system and CRM system
concluded on 18 September 2012 with Infovide-MaBiA. As a reason for withdrawal ENEA S.A. pointed
to a breach of contract by Infovide-Matrix S.A. Q& October 2013 Infovide-Matrix SA filed a lawstit

determine that the statement of ENEA SA dated 2fte®aber 2013 on the withdrawal from the contract is
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ineffective, demanding the execution of the contrdhe agreement amounted to PLN 59 781 thousand

No dates of court hearings have been determined yet

51. Signing of a framework agreement on the exploratiorfior and extraction of shale gas

On 4 July 2012 the Company signed a framework ageee on the exploration for and extraction of slygle
(the “Agreement”).

The parties of the Agreement are ENEA S.A., Pol&denictwo Naftowe i Gazownictwo S.A. (“PGNiG"),
KGHM Polska Mied S.A., PGE Polska Grupa Energetyczna S.A. and TANROIska Energia S.A.

The subject of cooperation of the Parties will be exploration, evaluation and extraction of skgds in
geological formations for which concessions havenbgranted for the exploration and evaluation qfodés

of crude oil and natural gas in relation to the Méepwo concession granted to PGNIG.

Under the Wejherowo concession, the cooperatioh asiver the area of approximately 160 k(Area of
Cooperation). The agreement also provides for teéepences for the Parties to interaction in theaiaing
area of Wejherowo concession (except for situatishen PGNIG explores, evaluates and extracts désha
gas individually and except for the area on whiG@N¥G has already begun the exploration near Opalimb
Lubocino). Estimated expenditures on exploratiorgl@ation and extraction with respect to the fitatee
zones (Kochanowo, @€gtkowo and Epcz pads) within the Area of Cooperation are pite@do be in the
amount of PLN 1.72 bin. In the third quarter of 3Ghe Parties continued to work on the terms otagrent
and to analyse the business and tax conditiortseof@operation.

On 31 December 2013 a framework agreement on thkrmtion for and extraction of shale gas signed on
4 July 2012 between Polskie Gérnictwo Naftowe i @veictwo S.A. (“PGNiG”), KGHM Polska MiedS.A.,
PGE Polska Grupa Energetyczna S.A., TAURON Polsiexdia S.A. and ENEA S.A. expired.

52. The participation in the construction of the nuclea power plant programme

On 5 September 2012 ENEA S.A. (ENEA), PGE Polskap@rEnergetyczna S.A. (PGE), TAURON Polska
Energia S.A. (TAURON) and KGHM Polska MiedS.A., have signed a letter of intent concerning th
purchase of shares in the first special purposéchghestablished for the construction and openatib the
first nuclear power plant in Poland. In accordamwi¢h the letter the companies will undertake the
development of a draft agreement for the purchésbares of PGE EJ 1 Sp. z 0.0., a special purpaisiele,
which is responsible for the direct preparationhaf investment process of the construction andatioer of
the first nuclear power plant in Poland. The agre®tnis to regulate the rights and obligations ahegarty by
the realization of the project, assuming that PGIEaat, directly or through a subsidiary, as adeain the
process of the project preparation and realizatidn.28 December 2012 the Parties to the lettentet

agreed to extend its validity period till 31 Mar2b13.

On 25 June 2013 ENEA, KGHM, PGE and TAURON conctuden Agreement on continuation of
development of a draft agreement for the purchdde@GE EJ1 (Agreement), which was announced in the
Current Report No. 28/2013 dated 26 June 2013.
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On 23 September 2013 ENEA, KGHM, PGE and TAURONs assult of working out the draft agreement for
the purchase of shares in the special purposeledbicthe construction and operation of nucleawgoplant,
initialed the Agreement of Shareholders. Thus,Rheties agreed that the initialed document corestthe
draft of the prospective Agreement of Shareholderse signed once corporate approvals of each Ragty
obtained. The Agreement of Shareholders will conth@tParties to conclude a purchase agreementoésh
in PGE EJ1 ("Share Purchase Agreement"). In acocelavith the Agreement, PGE will sell a block of
438,000 shares representing 30% of PGE EJ1 shpitald® other Parties of the Agreement, and assalt
PGE will own 70% of shares of PGE EJ1. The shaik®e/purchased in the following way:
* ENEA S.A. will purchase 146,000 shares which repmés10% of share capital of PGE EJ1,
» KGHM Polska Mied S.A will purchase 146,000 shares which represed¥®% of share capital
of PGE EJ1,
e TAURON Polska Energia S.A. will purchase 146,00@rsk which represents 10% of share
capital of PGE EJ1.
The Agreement of Shareholders also determinesulles of the participation of all Parties in the gamation
of the project and construction of nuclear powemplin Poland. PGE and other Parties will be ollige
conclude the Share Purchase Agreement after réalizaf two precedent conditions:
* obtaining the unconditional approval of the Presidef the Office for Competition and
Consumer Protection for the concentration,
« the adoption of Polish Nuclear Power ProgrammehbyQouncil of Ministers in 2013.
Despite the failure of the conditions precedentviged in the draft shareholders agreement initiaded
23 September 2013, the parties agreed to contiotiena in the project of preparation and constouctdf
a nuclear power plant in Poland and to develop rihdgsed arrangements in the draft Share Purchase

Agreement.

53. Signing of the Loan Agreement with European Investrant Bank

On 18 October 2012 ENEA S.A. (Debtor) executed akBeoan Agreement (Agreement) with European
Investment Bank (Bank) for the value of PLN 950limil or its equivalent in Euro currency. On 19 J204.3
ENEA S.A. (Debtor) executed a Financial AgreemerfABreement) with European Investment Bank (Bank)
for the value of PLN 475 million or its equivalent Euro currency. Therefore the total amount o&ficing
granted by the Bank over the last twelve monthsiarteal to PLN 1.425 billion.

The funds from the issue will be designated foafficing of long-term investment plan (Programme)tfier
modernization and extension of power grids of ENBperator Sp. z 0.0 located in north - western Rblan

The total value of the Programme is estimated ptagmately PLN 3,275.87 million.

The loan should be repaid after maximum of 15 yean the scheduled date of the loan payday. Tha loa

availability period expires on 18 October 2014. Triterest rate of the loan can be fixed or floating
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Additionally, on 19 June 2013 ENEA S.A. and ENEA&Rgtor Sp. z 0.0. signed an annex to the Agreement
on the Programme realization dated 18 October 20hzh settled issues relating the rules of thegRrmme
realization in part based on funds granted by tlamkB The annex updates the rules of the Programme

realization due to the increase of the total I@fdlnds granted by the Bank.

As at 31 December 2013 under the agreements witlopgan Investment Bank for a total value of

PLN 1.425 billion ENEA S.A. received funds in th@aunt of PLN 780 million.

On 21 January 2014 ENEA S.A. received the secamthe of a loan from European Investment Bankén t

amount of PLN 170 million.

54. Tax Capital Group

On 18 September 2013 ENEA S.A. concluded a Taxt@la@iroup Agreement (Agreement) named PGK
ENEA. The agreement was signed by nine subsidiaries

«  ENEA Operator Sp. z 0.0.,

« ENEA Centrum Sp. z o0.0.,

« ENEOS Sp. zo.0,,

e ENEA Trading Sp. z 0.0.,

 Energetyka Pozmmska  Przedsbiorstwo Ustug  Energetycznych  ENERGOBUD

Leszno Sp. z o.0.,

e« ENEA Wytwarzanie S.A.,

»  Energomiar Sp. z 0.0.,

+ BHUS.A and

*  Energetyka Pozrigka Zaktad Transportu Sp. z 0.0.
Tax Capital Group has been registered by Tax ©ffic 16 October 2013. The registration has beere rfuad

period of 3 fiscal years from 1 January 2014.
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55. Subsequent events

On 13 January 2014 Vattenfall put on sale 82 3% &vares of ENEA S.A. accounting for 18.67% of the
share capital. On 22 January 2014 Vattenfall cordt that on 15 January 2014 it sold all shareshésame
time Mr. Torbjorn Wahlborg resigned from the pamitiof the Member of the Supervisory Board.

On 28 January 2014 entities being part of ENEA Tapital Group concluded agreements on comprehensive
bank service with PKO BP S.A. Bank and Pekao S.ZnkB Within the agreements, ENEA S.A. concluded
additional agreements on the overdraft in the amo@®LN 300 million with both banks. At the sanieée

an agreement on the guarantee line in the amouALNf100 million with Bank Pekao S.A. has been sitn
Above mentioned agreements have been signed feaisyfrom the date of signing. The overdraft arel th

guarantee line will be launched after completiocadditions specified in the agreements.

According to the ENEA Group Corporate Strategyfruesuring actions have been taken for ITSERWIS.
A part of this company, which core business is eated with network of authorized PLUS GMS points of
sale, will be sold. Other activities of ITSERWISIwbe terminated. The next step will be a merger of
ITSERWIS with ENEA Centrum Sp. z 0.0. The procasglanned to be completed in the second half o201
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